








 

Minutes of City Council Meeting  1    June 22, 2021 

  
MINUTES OF MENDOTA 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 
 

Regular Meeting    June 22, 2021 
 
Meeting called to order by Mayor Castro at 6:14 p.m.  
 
Roll Call 
 
Council Members Present: Mayor Rolando Castro, Mayor Pro Tem Jesus 

Mendoza, Councilors Jose Alonso and Joseph 
Riofrio 

 
Council Members Absent:    Councilor Oscar Rosales 
 
Flag salute led by Mayor Castro 
 
Invocation led by Police Chaplain Ophelia Lugo 
 
FINALIZE THE AGENDA 
 
1. Adjustments to Agenda. 
 
2. Adoption of final Agenda. 
 
A motion was made by Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza to adopt the agenda, seconded by 
Councilor Alonso; unanimously approved (4 ayes, Rosales). 
 
PRESENTATION 
 
1. Joseph Kalpakoff with Mid Valley Disposal to present information on the SB 1383 

implementation program. 
 
Joseph Kalpakoff with Mid Valley Disposal presented information about the SB 1383 
implementation program. 
 
Discussion was held on the information provided by Mr. Kalpakoff. 
 

 



 

Minutes of City Council Meeting  2    June 22, 2021 

At 6:43 p.m. Mayor Castro left the Council Chambers and returned within the same 
minute. 
 
CITIZENS ORAL AND WRITTEN PRESENTATIONS 
 
None offered. 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES AND NOTICE OF WAIVING OF READING 

 
1. Minutes of the regular City Council meeting of June 8, 2021. 

 
2. Notice of waiving of the reading of all resolutions and/or ordinances introduced 

and/or adopted under this agenda. 
 
A motion was made by Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza to approve items 1 and 2, seconded by 
Councilor Riofrio; unanimously approved (4 ayes, absent: Rosales). 
 
CONSENT CALENDAR  
 
1. JUNE 4, 2021 THROUGH JUNE 16, 2021 

WARRANT LIST CHECK NOS. 50393 THROUGH 50443 
TOTAL FOR COUNCIL APPROVAL = $546,738.34 

 
2. Proposed adoption of Resolution No. 21-38, approving fireworks stand permits for 

2021. 
 
3. Proposed adoption of Resolution No. 21-39, authorizing the submission of a 

Request of Authorization for construction funding for the 2021 Alley Paving Project. 
 

4. Proposed adoption of Resolution No. 21-40, adopting a list of projects for fiscal year 
2021-2022 funded by Senate Bill 1: The Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017. 
 

5. Proposed adoption of Resolution No. 21-41, approving the submittal of a Letter of 
Intent to the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers for the Floodplain Management Services 
Program. 
 

6. Proposed adoption of Resolution No. 21-42, extending the date of repeal of the 
provisions of Mendota Municipal Code Sections 17.81.024 through 17.81.027 in the 
matter of Enhanced Economic Incentive Areas. 
 

A request was made to pull item 6 for discussion. 
 
A motion was made by Councilor Riofrio to approve items 1 through 5 of the Consent 
Calendar, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza; unanimously approved (4 ayes, absent: 
Rosales). 
 



 

Minutes of City Council Meeting  3    June 22, 2021 

6. Proposed adoption of Resolution No. 21-42, extending the date of repeal of the 
provisions of Mendota Municipal Code Sections 17.81.024 through 17.81.027 in the 
matter of Enhanced Economic Incentive Areas. 

 
Discussion was held on the item. 
 
A motion was made by Councilor Riofrio to approve item 6 of the Consent Calendar, 
seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza; unanimously approved (4 ayes, absent: Rosales). 
 
BUSINESS 
 
1. Council discussion and consideration of water conservation measures in response 

to the ongoing drought conditions. 
 
Mayor Castro introduced the item and City Manager Gonzalez provided the report. 
 
Discussion was held on the item. 
 
Council consensus was reached to direct staff to enact water conservation measures. 
 
DEPARTMENT REPORTS AND INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 
 
1. Animal Control, Code Enforcement, and Police Department 

a) Monthly Report 
 
Chief of Police Smith provided the report for the Code Enforcement Department including 
monthly statistics, and the status of the weed abatement process. 
 
Discussion was held on the department addressing public nuisance issues. 
 
Chief Smith provided the report for the Animal Control Department including monthly 
statistics, and the status of the animal control truck. 
 
Chief Smith provided the report for the Police Department including crime statistics, trends, 
and significant cases. 
 
Discussion was held on vehicles speeding in the City. 
 
2. City Attorney 

a) Update 
 
City Attorney Kinsey reported that Nicolas Cardella would be rejoining Wanger Jones 
Helsley. 
 
Discussion was held on the information provided by City Attorney Kinsey. 
 



 

Minutes of City Council Meeting  4    June 22, 2021 

3. City Manager 
 
City Manager Gonzalez reported on the upcoming Fireworks Show; that Finance Director 
Marquez was retiring soon; the OSHA guidelines concerning face masks; the status of the 
basketball court resurfacing project; and issues concerning locking and unlocking the 
restrooms at Rojas-Pierce Park. 
 
Discussion was held on the maintenance of the new baseball field. 
 
MAYOR AND COUNCIL REPORTS AND INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 
 
1. Council Member(s) 
 
Councilor Riofrio reported on the upcoming Fireworks Show; and illegal fireworks in the 
community. 
 
Discussion was held on enforcing illegal firework regulations. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza reported on the upcoming Fireworks Show and cornhole 
tournament. 
 
Discussion was held on the Fireworks Show. 
 
Councilor Alonso reported on an event he participated in; local youth participating in 
extracurricular activities and representing the City; and the upcoming Fireworks Show. 
 
2. Mayor 
 
Mayor Castro inquired on the status of the Little Cesar’s project; reported on the Harvest 
Festival; and the enforcement of the noise ordinance. 
 
CLOSED SESSION 
 
1. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 

a. Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to paragraph (2) of subdivision (d) 
of Government Code section 54956.9 (one potential case) 

 
2. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS 

Pursuant to CA Government Code §§ 54954.5(f), 54957.6 
a. Agency Designated Representative: Cristian Gonzalez, City Manager; Jennifer 

Lekumberry, Administrative Services Director 
b. Employee Organizations: Mendota Police Officers Association, American 

Federation of State, County and Municipal Employees, and Unrepresented 
Management Employees 

 
At 7:38 p.m. the Council moved into closed. 



 

Minutes of City Council Meeting  5    June 22, 2021 

At 8:24 p.m. the Council reconvened in open session and City Attorney Kinsey stated that 
in regard to item 1 of the Closed Session, the Council directed the City Attorney’s office to 
initiate litigation under the Health and Safety Code relating to 578 Lolita Street in the event 
that the order to abate is not complied with on or before July 8, 2021. In regard to item 2 of 
the Closed Session, there was no reportable action. 
 
BUSINESS CONTINUED 
 
2. Council discussion and consideration of Resolution No. 21-34, approving and 

adopting the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 operating budget for the City of Mendota. 
 
Mayor Castro introduced the item and City Manager Gonzalez provided the report. 
 
Finance Officer Diaz reported on the budget. 
 
Discussion was held on the item. 
 
A motion was made by Councilor Riofrio to adopt Resolution No. 21-34, seconded by 
Councilor Alonso; unanimously approved (4 ayes, absent: Rosales). 
 
3. Council discussion and consideration of Ordinance No. 21-14, amending Section 

2.04.070 of Chapter 2.04 of Title 2 of the Mendota Municipal Code to increase the 
compensation of City Council members. 

 
Mayor Castro introduced the item and City Attorney Kinsey stated that the item was tabled 
for further discussion. 
 
City Engineer Osborn provided an update on the Mowry Bridge Replacement Project. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
With no more business to be brought before the Council, a motion for adjournment was 
made at 8:47 p.m. by Councilor Alonso, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Mendoza 
unanimously approved (4 ayes, absent: Rosales). 
 
_______________________________   
Rolando Castro, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
  
_______________________________ 
Celeste Cabrera-Garcia, City Clerk 



CITY OF MENDOTA

CASH DISBURSEMENTS

6/16/2021-7/6/2021

CHECK# 50444-50521

Date Check # Check Amount Vendor            Department Description                                       

6/16/2021 50444 4,500.00$                              ADMINISTRATIVE SOLUTIONS - FRESNO GENERAL MEDICAL CHECK RUN 6/16/2021                       

6/16/2021 50445 88.00$                                   CABRERA, CELESTE              GENERAL REIMBURSEMENT-RECORDERS OFFICE COPY FEE-CASA DE ROSA

6/16/2021 50446 501.48$                                 COMCAST BUSINESS              GENERAL FRESNO SHERIFF TO MENDOTA PD CIRCUIT JUNE 2021    

6/16/2021 50447 216.15$                                 COMCAST                       GENERAL MENDOTA INTERNET CP-CASSANDRA PEREZ & GLORIA SALVADOR             

6/22/2021 50448 669.84$                                 AFLAC                         GENERAL AFLAC INSURANCE FOR THE MONTH OF JUNE 2021        

6/22/2021 50449 2,041.98$                              PURCHASE POWER                GENERAL-WATER-SEWER POSTAGE METER REFILL 5/14/21,5/16/21, 6/1-6/2/21  

6/22/2021 50450 629.68$                                 THE HOME DEPOT GENERAL

SOLAR POWERED 20-WATT GRAY OUTDOOR LED LIGHT, (2) BEHR 

ELASTOMERIC PAINT GATEHOOK AND EYE ZINC       

6/22/2021 50451 126,935.76$                          CITY OF MENDOTA PAYROLL       GENERAL PAYROLL TRANSFER 6/7/21 - 6/20/21                 

6/24/2021 50452 279.46$                                 ADT SECURITY SERVICES         GENERAL-WATER

SECURITY SERVICES 7/1/21-9/30/21-ROJAS CONCESSION, SECURITY 

SERVICES 7/4/21-8/3/21 WATER PLANT 

6/24/2021 50453 5,058.28$                              AMERITAS GROUP                GENERAL VISION & DENTAL INSURANCE FOR JULY 2021                    

6/24/2021 50454 939.01$                                 CORBIN WILLITS SY'S INCORPORATED      GENERAL-WATER-SEWER ENHANCEMENT & SERVICES FEES- MOMS SYSTEM JULY 2021

6/24/2021 50455 327.02$                                 DATAMATIC, INC.               WATER

MONTHLY SOFTWARE LICENSE & SERVICE MAINTENANCE FEE-

JULY2021

6/24/2021 50456 6,000.00$                              FRESNO COUNTY EDC             GENERAL-WATER-SEWER ANNUAL PUBLIC INVESTMENT 7/1/21-6/30/21-GOLD MEMBER

6/24/2021 50457 5,100.00$                              MOUNTAIN VALLEY ENVIRONMENTAL WATER-SEWER JULY 2021-WATER TREATMENT, DISTRIBUTION & CPO SERVICE

6/24/2021 50458 1,726.65$                              MUTUAL OF OMAHA               GENERAL LIFE, AD&D, LTD, & STD INSURANCE FOR JULY 2021    

6/24/2021 50459 194.36$                                 PITNEY BOWES INC.             GENERAL-WATER-SEWER POSTAGE METER RENTAL 7/1/21-9/30/21               

6/24/2021 50460 3,105.00$                              REGROUP                       GENERAL-WATER-SEWER REGROUP ANNUAL SUBSCRIPTION 9/10/21-9/9/22         

6/24/2021 50461 336.35$                                 UNION PACIFIC RAILROAD COMPANY STREETS PUBLIC ROADWAY ENCROACHMENT JULY 2021             

6/25/2021 50462 3,000.00$                              ADMINISTRATIVE SOLUTIONS - FRESNO GENERAL MEDICAL CHECK RUN 6/22/2021                       

6/25/2021 50463 954.12$                                 AT&T MOBILITY                 GENERAL POLICE DEPARTMENT CELL PHONE SERVICES  5/12/21-6/11/21 

6/25/2021 50464 415.41$                                 CALIFORNIA STATE LANDS COMMISSION WATER AMENDED STAFF/PROJECT CHANGES-REMOVAL OF MOWRY BRIDGE

6/25/2021 50465 9,500.00$                              NHA ADVISORS, LLC             GENERAL-WATER-SEWER MENDOTA 2021 PUBLIC FACILITIES FINANCIAL FEASIBILITY STUDY

6/25/2021 50466 40,000.00$                            

PUBLIC FACILITIES INVESTMENT 

CORPORATION GENERAL-WATER-SEWER PROGRAM MGT & PROFESSIONAL SERVICES FEE AGREEMENT  

6/28/2021 50467 25,630.98$                            AETNA LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY  GENERAL MEDICAL INSURANCE FOR JULY 2021                   

7/2/2021 50468 3,075.00$                              ADMINISTRATIVE SOLUTIONS - FRESNO GENERAL

MEDICAL CHECK RUN 6/29/2021, MONTHLY MEDICAL ADMINISTRATION 

FEES FOR JUNE 2021                       

7/2/2021 50469 2,774.00$                              CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TAX & FEE

GENERAL-WATER-SEWER-

STREETS USE TAX FOR 2020 31 DECEMBER 2020 # 102-068202    

7/2/2021 50470 372.06$                                 COLONIAL LIFE                 GENERAL LIFE INSURANCE PREMIUM FOR JUNE 2021              

7/2/2021 50471 29.85$                                   COMCAST                       GENERAL MENDOTA INTERNET CP- GUADALUPE SALVADOR           

7/2/2021 50472 10,511.60$                            WANGER JONES HELSLEY PC ATTORN GENERAL

PASSTHRU-LEGAL SERVICES RE: AXIOM DEVELOPMENT 3/15/21, 4/15/21, 

5/15/21 

7/2/2021 50473 1,827.90$                              WOOD ENVIRONMENT & INFRASTRUCTURE GENERAL ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES MENDOTA AG CANNABIS-PASSTHRU         

7/6/2021 50474 64.79$                                   ACE TROPHY SHOP               GENERAL (4) NAME PLATES (2X12)                            

7/6/2021 50475 57.77$                                   ALERT-0-LITE                  GENERAL-WATER-SEWER LEMON-LIME AND FRUIT PUNCH GATORADE 21OZ          

7/6/2021 50476 2,061.03$                              AUTOMATED OFFICE SYSTEMS      GENERAL-WATER-SEWER MAINTENANCE CONTRACT COPIER JUNE 2021- CITY HALL  & PD

7/6/2021 50477 408,985.45$                          AMERICAN PAVING COMPANY       WATER MOWRY BRIDGE REPLACEMENT 5/25/2021-6/24/2021      

7/6/2021 50478 536.91$                                 ARAMARK                       GENERAL-WATER-SEWER PUBLIC WORKS UNIFORM WEEK 5/6/2021, 6/10/2021, 6/17/2021, 6/24/2021,                

7/6/2021 50479 226.14$                                 AT&T                          GENERAL POLICE DISPATCH PHONE SERVICES 5/27/21-6/26/21    



CITY OF MENDOTA

CASH DISBURSEMENTS

6/16/2021-7/6/2021

CHECK# 50444-50521

7/6/2021 50480 11.62$                                   AUTOZONE, INC.                GENERAL (2) ARMOR ALL TIRE FOAM (PD)                     

7/6/2021 50481 450.00$                                 BAR PSYCHOLOGICAL GROUP       GENERAL PRE-EMPLOYMENT PSYCH SCREENING (L. JIM) (PD)      

7/6/2021 50482 76.01$                                   BELMONT NURSERY               GENERAL (8) CUPHEA 'LAVENDER LACE' (4) GUARA I.' BALLERINA    

7/6/2021 50483 4,177.57$                              BSK ASSOCIATES                WATER-SEWER

MENDOTA BRIDGE CONCRETE TESTING SERVICE- MAY 2021, WW 

WEEKLY, WEEKLY GRAB SAMPLE 6/8/2021, 6/15/21, 6/22/21, GENERAL 

EDT WEEKLY TREATMENT & DISTRIBUTION 6/15/21 

7/6/2021 50484 185.00$                                 CENTRAL VALLEY                GENERAL (1) ETHYL ALCOHOL, (1) ABUSE SCREEN, #21-0695  & #21-581 (PD)  

7/6/2021 50485 200.00$                                 DATA TICKET, INC.             GENERAL DAILY CITATION PROCESSING MAY 2021                

7/6/2021 50486 2,222.98$                              ECS HOUSE INDUSTRIES, INC.    SEWER (1 ) ASSY, STUBSHAFT 2-7/16", BEARING, PLATE, SEAL, & S/H

7/6/2021 50487 57.00$                                   EMPLOYEE RELATIONS            GENERAL-WATER-SEWER (1) CREDIT REPORT (1) CRIMINAL COURT (1) ID REPORT

7/6/2021 50488 261.09$                                 ENTENMANN-ROVIN COMPANY         GENERAL MENDOTA POLICE DEPARTMENT- CHIEF DOME BADGE (PD)  

7/6/2021 50489 268.13$                                 FASTSIGNS                     GENERAL 6'  FOUR SIDED FULL COLOR TABLE COVER- CITY LOGO   

7/6/2021 50490 504.00$                                 FRESNO MOBILE RADIO INC.      GENERAL (36) POLICE DEPARTMENT RADIOS FOR JUNE 2021       

7/6/2021 50491 85.00$                                   GIL'S FLOWERS                 GENERAL (1) FLOWER ARRANGEMENT & DELIVERY                  

7/6/2021 50492 4,246.66$                              J&E RESTAURANT SUPPLY, INC.   GENERAL (1) ICE MACHINE 530LB ELEVATION, ICE BIN, FILTER SYSTEM     

7/6/2021 50493 215.00$                                 KERWEST NEWSPAPER             SEWER LEGAL PROOF OF PUBLICATION-PURCHASE OF SEWER TRUCK

7/6/2021 50494 1,401.58$                              KOPPEL & GRUBER               GENERAL

CFD NO. 2006-1 PD & FIRE SERVICES ADMINISTRATION SERVICES APR-

JUNE, L&L DIST 2019

7/6/2021 50495 680.00$                                 LAW & ASSOCIATES              GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE INVESTIGATION- CONFIDENTIAL (PD)   

7/6/2021 50496 300.00$                                 LEXIS NEXIS                   GENERAL-WATER-SEWER MONTHLY SUBSCRIPTION 6/1/2021-6/30/21             

7/6/2021 50497 450.00$                                 MENDOTA YOUTH RECREATION      GENERAL ANNUAL HARVEST CARNIVAL DEPOSIT REIMBURSEMENT     

7/6/2021 50498 2,646.36$                              MENDOTA SMOG & REPAIR         GENERAL-STREETS

CUSTOMER REQUEST TO R&R BRAKE HOSE & SENSOR (PD), 2008 FORD 

150 REPAIR AND REPLACE TRANSMISSION    

7/6/2021 50499 2,657.34$                              METRO UNIFORM                 GENERAL

UNIFORM ITEMS-SOCKS, LACES, HANDCUFFS, PATCH-KAWANA, 

UNIFORM ITEMS- BELT, FLEXFIT WOOL CAP (J.ARCIGA)  (PD)

7/6/2021 50500 2,534.50$                              MID VALLEY DISPOSAL, INC      REFUSE-STREETS

ROLL OFF BIN 50Y QTY:11.34 TONS, ROLL OFF BIN EXCHANGE 10Y QTY: 

7.07, ROLL OFF BIN EXCHANGE 40Y QTY:17.38        

7/6/2021 50501 499.74$                                 MUNICIPAL MAINTENANCE EQUIPMENT STREETS TURNBUCKLE 7/8, CYLINDER, BROOM INNER (STREET SWEEPER)

7/6/2021 50502 4,739.79$                              NORTHSTAR CHEMICAL            WATER (830),(650), (850) SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE-12.5%                   

7/6/2021 50503 192.88$                                 OFFICE DEPOT                  GENERAL-WATER-SEWER

OFFICE SUPPLIES- PAPER 30%, FILE FOLDERS, FILE CRATE, FILE 

FOLDERS 100 PK, STAPLER, PENS, SIGN HOLDER

7/6/2021 50504 42,836.30$                            PG&E                          

GENERAL-WATER-SEWER-

STREETS-AIRPORT

WATER DEPARTMENT UTILITIES 5/14/2021-6/14/2021, CITYWIDE UTILITIES 

FOR 5/11/2021-6/9/2021   

7/6/2021 50505 VOID

7/6/2021 50506 38,614.80$                            PROVOST & PRITCHARD           

GENERAL-WATER-SEWER-

STREETS 

MOWRY BRIDGE FINAL DES & CON 5/1/21-5/31/21, METER READING 

PROJECT SERVICES FOR 5/1/21-5/31/21, CITY OF MENDOTA RETAINER 20-

21 SERVICES MAY 2021    

7/6/2021 50507 68.93$                                   PURL'S SHEETMETAL & AIR       GENERAL-WATER-SEWER (8) AIR FILTER 20X16X2 FOR CITY HALL              

7/6/2021 50508 552.86$                                 RAMON'S TIRE & AUTO SERVICE                

GENERAL-WATER-SEWER-

STREETS

FORD UNIT #13 TIRE REPAIR, FORD F-350 XL #09  TIRE INSTALLATION, 

VALVE STEM, FORD EXPLORER #83 RIGHT REAR TIRE REPAIR                        

7/6/2021 50509 6,123.38$                              ROSENBALM ROCKERY INC.        GENERAL HONED STP PANEL EVEREST MARBLE E/W (WELCOME SIGNS)

7/6/2021 50510 3,214.54$                              ERNEST PACKING SOLUTIONS      

GENERAL-WATER-SEWER-

REFUSE 

(5) CAN LINER 36X58 1.8 MIL LD BK 55 GAL, TRASH CAN, (5) CT Y-NOTCH 

RT 800 WHITE, CLOROX PINE-SOL, CAN 

7/6/2021 50511 165.00$                                 SEBASTIAN                     GENERAL-WATER-SEWER (1)HR LOW VOLTAGE LABOR                           

7/6/2021 50512 1,546.73$                              SIGNMAX                       STREETS

(20) 24X24 HIP BLACK & YELLOW TRAFFIC SIGNS, (10) STOP SIGNS 30" 

EGP       

7/6/2021 50513 1,547.42$                              SITEONE LANDSCAPE SUPPLY LLC  GENERAL

TORO RETROFIT KIT FOR 100P1.5-1/2IN ,HUNTER MP NOD, (1) HUNTER 

PGV ASV PVC ANTI-SIPHON VALVE-PARKS 

7/6/2021 50514 89.08$                                   SUNNYSIDE TROPHY              GENERAL 9X12 ROSEWOOD PLAQUE                              

7/6/2021 50515 575.00$                                 MARK ANTHONY DUARTE           GENERAL-WATER-SEWER

ROJAS PARK SQUIRREL & GOPHER BAIT STATIONS JUNE 2021, PEST 

CONTROL SERV. CITYHALL/DMV/YOUTH CENT.6/22/21

7/6/2021 50516 4,722.81$                              THE SHERWIN-WILLIAMS COMPANY     STREETS

(1) LINELAZER 3400-GRACO GAS POWERED LINESTRIPER, (2) 5 GAL 

PAINT CANS WHITE AND YELLOW     



CITY OF MENDOTA

CASH DISBURSEMENTS

6/16/2021-7/6/2021

CHECK# 50444-50521

7/6/2021 50517 1,597.11$                              TRIANGLE ROCK PRODUCTS, LLC    STREETS

ST 1/2IN HMA TYPE A AGG & ASPHALT HUMPS ON GREGG CT. ST 1/2 IN 

HMA TYPE A QTY: 4.17 AGG & ASPHALT STREET PATCHING

7/6/2021 50518 2,467.86$                              VIKING MANUFACTURING INC.     GENERAL 20X20X8' CARPORT FOR POLICE DEPARTMENT            

7/6/2021 50519 300.00$                                 VORTAL                        GENERAL-WATER-SEWER WEBSITE MAINTENANCE AND HOSTING 5/16/2021 & 6/16/2021         

7/6/2021 50520 605.96$                                 VULCAN MATERIALS COMPANY      STREETS ST 1/2IN HMA TYPE A QTY: 9.27 STREET HUMP- GREGG CT.

7/6/2021 50521 64.80$                                   WECO                          GENERAL-WATER-SEWER (6) RENTAL CYL ACETYLENE #4 D & K JUNE 2021         

802,826.86$                         



1 

 

AGENDA ITEM – STAFF REPORT 

TO: HONORABLE MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS 

FROM: CELESTE CABRERA-GARCIA, CITY CLERK 

VIA: CRISTIAN GONZALEZ, CITY MANAGER 

SUBJECT: APPROVING THE APPLICATION FOR ELIGIBILITY FOR THE STATE & FEDERAL SURPLUS 
PROPERTY PROGRAM 

DATE: JULY 13, 2021 
 

ISSUE 
Should the City Council adopt Resolution No. 21-43, approving the application for eligibility for 
the State & Federal Surplus Property Program; authorizing City representatives to acquire 
surplus property from the California State Agency for Surplus Property; and authorizing the City 
Manager or his designee to execute any and all necessary documents? 
 
BACKGROUND 
The City of Mendota (“City”) has been informed that there is a possibility that it may be able to 
acquire surplused equipment from a federal agency. 
 
ANALYSIS 
In order for the City to acquire the equipment, it is required to submit an application for 
eligibility for the State & Federal Surplus Property Program to the state’s Department of General 
Services (“DGS”). Following the submittal of the application, DGS will evaluate the City’s 
eligibility to participate in the program. Should the City be eligible, it will receive an approval 
letter and authorized City representatives will be permitted to coordinate with the federal agency 
to acquire the surplused equipment. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
Costs associated with acquiring the surplused equipment, if any. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 21-43, approving the application 
for eligibility for the State & Federal Surplus Property Program; authorizing City representatives 
to acquire surplus property from the California State Agency for Surplus Property; and 
authorizing the City Manager or his designee to execute any and all necessary documents. 
 
 
Attachment(s): 

1. Application for Eligibility 
2. Resolution No. 21-43 

 

















 1 

BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE 

CITY OF MENDOTA, COUNTY OF FRESNO 
 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL   RESOLUTION NO. 21-43 
OF THE CITY OF MENDOTA APPROVING 
THE APPLICATION FOR ELIGIBILITY FOR  
THE STATE & FEDERAL SURPLUS PROPERTY 
PROGRAM; AUTHORIZING CITY REPRESENTATIVES 
TO ACQUIRE SURPLUS PROPERTY FROM  
THE CALIFORNIA STATE AGENCY FOR  
SURPLUS PROPERTY; AND AUTHORIZING  
THE CITY MANAGER OR HIS DESIGNEE  
TO EXECUTE ANY AND ALL NECESSARY 
DOCUMENTS 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Mendota (“City”) is responsible for acquiring and 
maintaining the property necessary to ensure the health, safety, and wellbeing of the 
City’s residents; and  
 
 WHEREAS, it is the desire of the City to acquire surplus property from State and 
Federal agencies to be used for day-to-day operations and by the City’s residents; and 
 

WHEREAS, in order to potentially acquire surplus property, the City is required to 
prepare and submit an Application for Eligibility for the State & Federal Surplus Property 
Program (“Program”). 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of 
Mendota hereby approves the Application for Eligibility for the State & Federal Surplus 
Property Program, authorizes City representatives to acquire surplus property from the 
California State Agency for Surplus Property, and authorizes the City Manager, or his 
designee, to execute any and all necessary documents. 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Rolando Castro, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 2 

ATTEST: 
 
 I, Celeste Cabrera-Garcia, City Clerk of the City of Mendota, do hereby certify 
that the foregoing resolution was duly adopted and passed by the City Council at a 
regular meeting of said Council, held at the Mendota City Hall on the 13th day of July, 
2021, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN:            
       ______________________________ 

Celeste Cabrera-Garcia, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



1 

 

AGENDA ITEM – STAFF REPORT 

TO: HONORABLE MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS 

FROM: CELESTE CABRERA-GARCIA, CITY CLERK 

VIA: CRISTIAN GONZALEZ, CITY MANAGER 

SUBJECT: APPROVING THE LETTER OF AUTHORIZATION FOR THE OIL PAYMENT PROGRAM 
CYCLE 12 (OPP12) 

DATE: JULY 13, 2021 
  

ISSUE 
Shall the City Council adopt Resolution No. 21-44, authorizing the City Manager to execute a 
letter of authorization allowing Fresno County to submit a regional grant application to 
CalRecycle for the Oil Payment Program Cycle 12 (OPP12)? 
 
BACKGROUND 
The City of Mendota (“City”) has participated in the Oil Payment Program (“OPP”) for many 
years. This program allows businesses to register with Fresno County (“County”) and receive 
reimbursement for accepting used oil. The County has coordinated this program for over 20 
years and is preparing another grant application for OPP Cycle 12 (“OPP12”). 
 
ANALYSIS 
Fresno County is planning to once again be the lead agency on the program application to the 
California Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery (“CalRecycle”) and is asking for 
Letters of Authorization from the cities that wish to participate. There is no cost to our City for 
participating in the program and it provides a benefit by subsidizing the cost of accepting used 
oil, so residents can exchange it to be recycled for free.    
 
Attached is the Letter of Authorization that the City needs to provide to the County so that they 
can submit the grant application on the City’s behalf.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
None. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 21-44, authorizing the City 
Manager to execute a letter of authorization allowing Fresno County to submit a regional grant 
application to CalRecycle for the Oil Payment Program Cycle 12 (OPP12). 
 
Attachment(s): 

1. Resolution No. 21-44 
2. Exhibit “A” – Letter of Authorization for OPP12 

 



 1 

BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE 

CITY OF MENDOTA, COUNTY OF FRESNO 
 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL   RESOLUTION NO. 21-44 
OF THE CITY OF MENDOTA AUTHORIZING 
THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A LETTER 
OF AUTHORIZATION ALLOWING FRESNO 
COUNTY TO SUBMIT A REGIONAL GRANT 
APPLICATION TO CALRECYCLE FOR 
THE OIL PAYMENT PROGRAM CYCLE 12  
 
 WHEREAS, Fresno County (“County”) has acted as the lead applicant for the 
region in submitting grant applications to the California Department of Resources 
Recycling & Recovery (“CalRecycle”) for assistance in disposing used oil and filters; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the County has requested that the City of Mendota (“City”) submit a 
Letter of Authorization to formalize the City’s participation in the program and authorize 
the County to submit the application on the City’s behalf; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Letter of Authorization, attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and 
incorporated herein by this reference, formalizes the City’s participation in the Oil 
Payment Program Cycle 12 (“OPP12”). 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of 
Mendota hereby authorizes the City Manager to execute the letter of authorization, 
attached hereto as Exhibit “A”, allowing Fresno County to submit a grant application to 
CalRecycle for the Oil Payment Program Cycle 12.  
 
       ______________________________ 
       Rolando Castro, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 I, Celeste Cabrera-Garcia, City Clerk of the City of Mendota, do hereby certify 
that the foregoing resolution was duly adopted and passed by the City Council at a 
regular meeting of said Council, held at the Mendota City Hall on the 13th day of July, 
2021, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN:       
 

______________________________ 
Celeste Cabrera-Garcia, City Clerk 



Exhibit A 



July 13, 2021 
 
 
 
 
Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery (CalRecycle) 
1001 “I” Street 
P.O. Box 4025 
Sacramento, CA  95812-4025 
 
 
Dear CalRecycle: 
 
RE:  Letter of Authorization for Oil Payment Program, Cycle 12 (OPP12) 
 
I am the City Manager for the City of Mendota. I am authorized to contractually bind the City of 
Mendota. Pursuant to this authority, I hereby authorize the County of Fresno to submit a 
regional application and to act as Lead Agency on behalf of the City of Mendota. The County of 
Fresno is hereby authorized to execute all documents necessary to implement the project and 
secure payment under the OPP12 program. This authorization is and shall remain effective until 
the end of the OPP12 performance period, which is June 30, 2023. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Cristian Gonzalez 
City Manager 
City of Mendota 
(559) 655-3291 ext. 106 
 



1 

 

AGENDA ITEM – STAFF REPORT 

TO: HONORABLE MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS 

FROM: NANCY M. DIAZ, FINANCE OFFICER 

VIA: CRISTIAN GONZALEZ, CITY MANAGER 

SUBJECT: CLAIMING LOCAL TRANSPORTATION FUNDS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2021-2022 

DATE: JULY 13, 2021 
  

ISSUE 
Should the City Council approve Resolution 21-45, claiming Local Transportation Funds for 
Fiscal Year 2021-2022? 
 
BACKGROUND 
The Fresno Council of Governments (FCOG) has the authority to review claims and allocate 
such funds in accordance with the Transportation Development Act (TDA) of 1971 and Chapter 
3 of Title 21 of the California Administrative Code for the purposes allowed under Articles III, 
IV and VII which provides funding to be allocated to encourage inter-jurisdictional coordination 
of transportation needs and increased coordination of transportation implementation planning. 
This funding is allocated by the California Department of Tax and Fee Administration, which 
takes the amount of sales tax collected and returns the general sales tax revenue to the Council of 
Fresno County Governments. They in turn, allocate it to each City in the County based on 
population for the projects that were budgeted for the 2021-2022 fiscal year.  
 
ANALYSIS 
The attached resolution and claim forms for each applicable funding program are routine and 
required by FCOG to receive the funding for the Local Transportation Funds. With the funding 
provided under the TDA, the City can fund street projects approved during the budget for each 
fiscal year, rural transit and assist with regional transportation planning.  
 
The total amount allocated for the City of Mendota is $606,024.00. However, the City will be 
payable $356,692.00 from the total allocation. The remaining $249,332.00 will be distributed 
among four sections: Regional Transportation Planning, Community Transit Service, Article 4.5, 
Fresno County Rural Transit Agency LTF and Fresno County Rural Transit Agency STA. The 
following table displays each sections allocation: 

FY 2021/2022
Regional Transportation Planning 14,528.00$   
Community Transit Service, Article 4.5 25,705.00$   
Fresno County Rural Transit Agency LTF 123,435.00$ 
Fresno County Rural Transit Agency STA 85,664.00$   

249,332.00$  



2 

 

Regional Transportation Planning is a long-term design of a region’s transportation system. The 
plan identifies and analyzes transportation needs of the metropolitan region and creates a 
framework for project priorities. 
 
Community Transit Service, Article 4.5 is a transportation planning agency for community 
transit services for those disabled, who cannot use conventional transit services. Transportation 
services which connect intra-community origins and destinations in which needs are not being 
met in the community.   
 
Fresno County Rural Transit is a transportation service offered in Fresno County to the 13 rural 
incorporated communities and many unincorporated rural communities with limited services to 
neighboring counties Kings County (Avenal and Hanford). There is a Demand Responsive or 
Fixed Route Basis for all passengers. The difference between LTF and STA funding is STA is 
specific to transit purposes.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
$356,692.00 to the City of Mendota “LTF” Fund. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends Council to approve Resolution No. 21-45, claiming Local Transportation 
Funds for Fiscal Year 2021-2022. 
 
Attachment(s): 

1. Transportation Funding Claim Forms for Fiscal Year 2021/22 
2. Resolution No. 21-45 

 
 
 
 



Enter Date: 7/13/2021 Claimant Name: City of Mendota

From: Applicant:
Address:

City/State/Zip:
Contact Phone/email:

Local Transportation Fund
Apportionment:  $    520,360.00 

Unexpended, Held by Claimant:
Other Agency:

State Transit Assistance Fund
Estimate:  $      85,664.00 

Unexpended, Held in Trust:  $                  -   
Other

Other:

TOTAL
606,024.00$    

Please print and sign after completing form

Authorized Signature:
Name/Title:

Date: 7/13/2021

Mendota, CA 93640
(559) 655-3291/nancy@cityofmendota.com

TRANSPORTATION FUNDING CLAIM FOR FISCAL YEAR:  2021/22

Instructions: Please note that each page of this claim is a separate worksheet, please click through all tabs 
and complete. Also note that light yellow fields require an entry if applicable, light grey fields contain formulas 
that will automatically calculate based on corresponding entries. A date and claimant name field is at the top 

of the first page, and automatically repeats on following pages, (date should be formatted 00/00/0000)  
When completed, please print, sign and send signed original via mail to: 

Les Beshears, Director of Finance, Fresno Council of Governments, 2035 Tulare Street, Suite 201, 
Fresno, CA 93721

City of Mendota
643 Quince Street

Cristian Gonzalez/City Manager

This applicant is an eligible claimant pursuant to Section 99203 of the Public Utilities Code and certifies that 
the following transportation funds are available to be claimed: 

for the purposes and respective amounts specified in the attached claim be drawn from the Local 
Transportation Fund and State Transit Assistance Fund. 

spell out total amount in above cell



Enter Date: 7/13/2021 Claimant Name:

TRANSPORTATION FUNDING CLAIM DETAIL FOR FISCAL YEAR:  2021/22

PURPOSE AMOUNT SUBTOTAL

1. Bicycle & Pedestrian Facilities:  
Article 3: 10,403.00$            

Article 8a:
Audit Exceptions (General Fund Payback);

Unexpended Funds, Held by Claimant: 
10,403.00$                  

2. Regional Transportation Planning: 14,528.00$            14,528.00$                  

3. Public Transportation State Transit Assistance Funds (STA): -$                       
Other: 

-$                             

4. Community Transit Service CTSA, Article 4.5: 25,705.00$            25,705.00$                  

5. Streets & Roads: Article 8a: 346,289.00$          
Unexpended Funds, Held by Claimant: 

346,289.00$                

6. To Be Claimed By:
Fresno County Rural Transit Agency LTF: 123,435.00$          
Fresno County Rural Transit Agency STA: 85,664.00$            

Other -$                       
209,099.00$                

7. Reserve in Fund Pending Further Claiming -$                             

GRAND TOTAL 606,024.00$                
Claim Total Must Agree With Total on First Page 606,024.00$                

Minus Non Transit Claims 249,332.00$                
GRAND TOTAL PAYABLE TO CLAIMANT 356,692.00$                

Allocation instructions and payment by the Fresno County Auditor-Controller to the applicant is subject to such monies being available 
for distribution, and to the provisions that such monies will be used only in accordance with the rules and regulations of the 

Transportation Development Act.

City of Mendota



Enter Date: 7/13/2021 Claimant Name:

PROJECT TITLE & BRIEF DESCRIPTION PROJECT COST

1. Various Bicycle & Pedestrian Facilities throughout the claimant's jurisdiction:  10,403.00$             

AND/OR:
-$                        
-$                        
-$                        

TOTAL PROJECT COSTS 10,403.00$             

PROJECT TITLE & BRIEF DESCRIPTION PROJECT COST

346,289.00$           

AND/OR: -$                        
-$                        
-$                        
-$                        

TOTAL PROJECT COSTS 346,289.00$           

City of Mendota

Other - describe briefly if applicable:

Other - describe briefly if applicable:
Other - describe briefly if applicable:

BICYCLE AND PEDESTRIAN FACILITIES FOR FISCAL YEAR: 2021/22
Two percent (2%) of the claimant’s Local Transportation Fund apportionment must be spent on bicycle and 
pedestrian facilities (PUC 99233.3 and 99234); such claims are to be filed as Article 3. Claims for projects in 

excess of 2% may be filed as Article 8a (PUC 99400(a)). If other funding is to be used with Local Transportation 
Funds to implement projects, such funding should be shown on the claim form.

Other - describe briefly if applicable:

Other - describe briefly if applicable:
Other - describe briefly if applicable:

Local Transportation Funds coming to claimants within Fresno County may be used for streets and roads improvements and 
maintenance pursuant to Article 8 (PUC 99400), but only after Fresno COG makes a finding that public transportation needs 

within the claimant’s jurisdiction are reasonably met by satisfying the service requirements set forth by the Regional 
Transportation Plan (PUC 99401.5).

STREETS AND ROADS CLAIM FOR FISCAL YEAR: 2021/22

1. Development, Construction & Maintenance Facilities throughout the claimant's 
jurisdiction:  



Enter Date: 7/13/2021 Claimant Name:

CONTINGENCY PROJECT LISTING FOR FISCAL YEAR:  2021/22

CHECK ALL THAT APPLY (Enter "X" in yellow box) 

BICYCLE AND PEDESTRIAN FACILITIES PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION STREETS & ROADS
X Article 3 X Article 4 X Article 8a

STANDARD ASSURANCES FOR CLAIMANTS
CLAIMANT ASSURANCES: (initial yellow box all that apply)

X

X

The undersigned hereby certifies that the above statements are true and correct.
Please print and sign after completing form

Name/Title:
Date: 7/13/2021

City of Mendota

Cristian Gonzalez/City Manager

A. Claimant certifies that it has submitted a satisfactory, independent fiscal audit, with required certification statement, to 
the RTPA and to the State Controller, pursuant to PUC 99245 and 21 Cal. Code of Regulations Section 6664 for the prior 
fiscal year (project year minus two). Claimant assures that this audit requirement will be completed for the current fiscal 
year (project year minus one).

Authorized 
Signature:

B. Claimant certifies that it has submitted a State Controller Report to the RTPA and to the State Controller, pursuant 
to PUC 99243.



 1 

BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE 

CITY OF MENDOTA, COUNTY OF FRESNO 
 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL   RESOLUTION NO. 21-45 
OF THE CITY OF MENDOTA IN THE MATTER 
OF CLAIMING LOCAL TRANSPORTATION 
FUNDS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2021-2022 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Mendota hereby submits a Local Transportation Fund 
Claim from the Local Transportation Fund of Fresno County for Fiscal Year 2021-2022; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Fresno Council of Governments (“FCOG”) has the authority to 
review claims and allocate such funds in accordance with the Transportation 
Development Act of 1971 and Chapter 3 of Title 21 of the California Administrative 
Code; and 
 
 WHEREAS, FCOG encourages interjurisdictional coordination of transportation 
needs and increased coordination of transportation implementation plans. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of 
Mendota that the City hereby requests FCOG allocate $606,024.00 from the Local 
Transportation Fund to the named applicant for the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 for the 
purposes allowed under Articles III, IV, and VIII of the Transportation Development Act 
of 1971, as identified in the attached claim and in accordance with the adopted Regional 
Transportation Plan, and authorize the City Manager to execute all associated 
agreements and documents. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the City of Mendota hereby requests that the 
City’s total Transportation Fund apportionment for the Fiscal Year 2021-2022, said 
amount being $249,332.00, be allocated from the Local Transportation Fund to the 
FCOG for the purpose of conducting Regional Transportation Planning. 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Rolando Castro, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 2 

ATTEST: 
 
 I, Celeste Cabrera-Garcia, City Clerk of the City of Mendota, do hereby certify 
that the foregoing resolution was duly adopted and passed by the City Council at a 
regular meeting of said Council, held at the Mendota City Hall on the 13th day of July, 
2021, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN:  
       ______________________________ 

Celeste Cabrera-Garcia, City Clerk 



1 

 

AGENDA ITEM – STAFF REPORT 

TO: HONORABLE MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS 

FROM: NANCY DIAZ, FINANCE OFFICER 

VIA: CRISTIAN GONZALEZ, CITY MANAGER 

SUBJECT: LOCAL TRANSPORTATION PURPOSE FUNDS (MEASURE “C” EXTENSION FUNDS) 

DATE: JULY 13, 2021 
  

ISSUE 
Shall the City Council adopt Resolution No. 21-46, approving local transportation purpose funds 
(Measure “C” Extension Funds)?  
 
BACKGROUND 
The Transportation Development Act (TDA) of 1971 provides funding to be allocated to transit 
and non-transit related purposes that comply with regional transportation plans. This funding is 
allocated by the California Department of Tax and Fee Administration, which takes the amount 
of sales tax collected and returns the general sales tax revenue to the Council of Fresno County 
Governments. They in turn, allocate it to each City in the County based on population for the 
projects that were budgeted for the 2021-2022 fiscal year. 
 
ANALYSIS 
The attached resolution, certification and claim forms for each applicable funding program are 
routine and required by Fresno County Transportation Authority in order to receive the funding 
for Measure C Pass-Through Funds. With the funding provided by Fresno County Transportation 
Authority, the City is able to fund street projects approved during the budget for each fiscal year. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
$390,974.00 to the City of Mendota Measure “C” Fund. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 21-46, claiming Measure C Local 
Transportation Pass-Through Revenues for Fiscal Year 2021-2022.   
 
Attachment(s): 

1. Resolution of Allocation 2021-01 
2. Measure C Extension Local Transportation Pass Through Revenues Certification and 

Claim for FY 2021-22 (ADA Compliance) 
3. Measure C Extension Local Transportation Pass Through Revenues Certification and 

Claim for FY 2021-22 (Flexible Funding) 
4. Measure C Extension Local Transportation Pass Through Revenues Certification and 

Claim for FY 2021-22 (Street Maintenance) 
5. Resolution No. 21-46 















Measure C Extension Strategic Implementation Plan - Appendix D 

MEASURE C EXTENSION 
LOCAL TRANSPORTATION PASS THROUGH REVENUES 

CERTIFICATION AND CLAIM FOR FY2021-22 
 
TO:  Fresno County Transportation Authority  
 
FROM:  City of Mendota 
                 Local Agency Name 
Address:643 Quince Street, Mendota, CA 93640   Contact:  Nancy Diaz, Finance Officer_    

Telephone: (559) 655-3291  _   FAX: (559) 655-4064_   Email Address: nancy@cityofmendota.com_ 
 

1. Applicable Funding Program: (Check One)   
Regional Public Transit Program 

   Fresno Area Express 
  Clovis Transit 
   FCRTA 
  PTIS/Transit Consolidation 
  ADA/Seniors/Paratransit 
  Farmworker Van Pools 
  Car/Van Pools 
  New Technology Reserve 

 

Local Transportation Program 
    Street Maintenance 
     ADA Compliance 
     Flexible Funding 
     Pedestrian/Trails Urban 
     Pedestrian/Trails Rural 
     Bicycle Facilities 

Regional Transportation Program 
     Fresno Airports 

 

 
Alternative Transportation Program 

    Rail Consolidation Subprogram 
Environmental Enhancement Program 

    School Bus Replacement  
     Transit Oriented Infrastructure for 

In-Fill 
Administrative/Planning Program 

    Fresno COG

2. The  City of Mendota ("claimant") is an eligible claimant of funds for local transportation purposes pursuant to 
         Local Agency Name 
 California Public Utilities Code Section 142257. 
 

3. The Fresno County Transportation Authority has adopted a Resolution of Apportionment for Fiscal Year 2021-2022 
setting 1.31% of $467,266 (or $6,131) for the Subprogram or Category of funds checked above and available to the 
claimant.  On behalf of claimant, I hereby request release of the funds to claimant in accordance with: 
(a) Monthly payments consistent with adopted percentage, based on actual receipts 
(b)  Compliance with Steps A and B of the Strategic Implementation Plan (SIP) – Local Agency Pass-Through 

Funding programs and Other Revenue Program Funding  
 

4. On behalf of claimant, I hereby certify as follows: 
(a)  That the Subprogram or Category of funds checked above are not being used to substitute for property tax 

funds which claimant had previously used for local transportation purposes.  Such substitution of property tax 
funds is prohibited by California Public Utilities Code Section 142257. 

(b) That claimant has segregated property tax revenues from claimant's other general fund revenues used to 
support the Subprogram or Category of funds checked above so that verification of non-substitution can be 
proved through audit or that the non-substitution of funds shall apply to claimant's entire general fund. 

(c) That claimant shall account for Subprogram or Category of funds checked above and received pursuant to 
Public Utilities Code Section 142257.  Claimant shall maintain current records in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles and shall separately record expenditures for each type of eligible purpose.  
Claimant shall make such records available to the Authority for inspection or audit at any time. 

 

5. Claimant understands that should financial or compliance audit exceptions be found, the Fresno County Transportation 
Authority will take immediate steps to resolve the exceptions in accordance with its adopted procedures. 

 

   

  

 _______________________________________________________ 

    Finance Director                                                   ________________ 

 
ATTACHMENT:   Evidence of Formal Action for Approval and Submittal    
   
  Approved by:  Fresno County Transportation Authority Board on: __________________________ 
 

Authorized Signature:  

Title:  

Date:  



Measure C Extension Strategic Implementation Plan - Appendix D 

MEASURE C EXTENSION 
LOCAL TRANSPORTATION PASS THROUGH REVENUES 

CERTIFICATION AND CLAIM FOR FY2021-22 
 
TO:  Fresno County Transportation Authority  
 
FROM:  City of Mendota 
                 Local Agency Name 
Address:643 Quince Street, Mendota, CA 93640   Contact:  Nancy Diaz, Finance Officer_    

Telephone: (559) 655-3291 _   FAX: (559) 655-4064_   Email Address: nancy@cityofmendota.com_ 
 

1. Applicable Funding Program: (Check One)   
Regional Public Transit Program 

   Fresno Area Express 
  Clovis Transit 
   FCRTA 
  PTIS/Transit Consolidation 
  ADA/Seniors/Paratransit 
  Farmworker Van Pools 
  Car/Van Pools 
  New Technology Reserve 

 

Local Transportation Program 
    Street Maintenance 
     ADA Compliance 
     Flexible Funding 
     Pedestrian/Trails Urban 
     Pedestrian/Trails Rural 
     Bicycle Facilities 

Regional Transportation Program 
     Fresno Airports 

 

 
Alternative Transportation Program 

    Rail Consolidation Subprogram 
Environmental Enhancement Program 

    School Bus Replacement  
     Transit Oriented Infrastructure for 

In-Fill 
Administrative/Planning Program 

    Fresno COG

2. The  City of Mendota ("claimant") is an eligible claimant of funds for local transportation purposes pursuant to 
         Local Agency Name 
 California Public Utilities Code Section 142257. 
 

3. The Fresno County Transportation Authority has adopted a Resolution of Apportionment for Fiscal Year 2021-2022 
setting 1.57% of $13,327,988 (or $209,684) for the Subprogram or Category of funds checked above and available to 
the claimant.  On behalf of claimant, I hereby request release of the funds to claimant in accordance with: 
(a) Monthly payments consistent with adopted percentage, based on actual receipts 
(b)  Compliance with Steps A and B of the Strategic Implementation Plan (SIP) – Local Agency Pass-Through 

Funding programs and Other Revenue Program Funding  
 

4. On behalf of claimant, I hereby certify as follows: 
(a)  That the Subprogram or Category of funds checked above are not being used to substitute for property tax 

funds which claimant had previously used for local transportation purposes.  Such substitution of property tax 
funds is prohibited by California Public Utilities Code Section 142257. 

(b) That claimant has segregated property tax revenues from claimant's other general fund revenues used to 
support the Subprogram or Category of funds checked above so that verification of non-substitution can be 
proved through audit or that the non-substitution of funds shall apply to claimant's entire general fund. 

(c) That claimant shall account for Subprogram or Category of funds checked above and received pursuant to 
Public Utilities Code Section 142257.  Claimant shall maintain current records in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles and shall separately record expenditures for each type of eligible purpose.  
Claimant shall make such records available to the Authority for inspection or audit at any time. 

 

5. Claimant understands that should financial or compliance audit exceptions be found, the Fresno County Transportation 
Authority will take immediate steps to resolve the exceptions in accordance with its adopted procedures. 

 

   

  

 _______________________________________________________ 

    Finance Director                                                   ________________ 

 
ATTACHMENT:   Evidence of Formal Action for Approval and Submittal    
   
  Approved by:  Fresno County Transportation Authority Board on: __________________________ 
 

Authorized Signature:  

Title:  

Date:  



Measure C Extension Strategic Implementation Plan - Appendix D 

MEASURE C EXTENSION 
LOCAL TRANSPORTATION PASS THROUGH REVENUES 

CERTIFICATION AND CLAIM FOR FY2021-22 
 
TO:  Fresno County Transportation Authority  
 
FROM:  City of Mendota 
                 Local Agency Name 
Address:643 Quince Street, Mendota, CA 93640   Contact:  Nancy Diaz, Finance Officer_    

Telephone: (559) 655-3291 _   FAX: (559) 655-4064_   Email Address: nancy@cityofmendota.com_ 
 

1. Applicable Funding Program: (Check One)   
Regional Public Transit Program 

   Fresno Area Express 
  Clovis Transit 
   FCRTA 
  PTIS/Transit Consolidation 
  ADA/Seniors/Paratransit 
  Farmworker Van Pools 
  Car/Van Pools 
  New Technology Reserve 

 

Local Transportation Program 
    Street Maintenance 
     ADA Compliance 
     Flexible Funding 
     Pedestrian/Trails Urban 
     Pedestrian/Trails Rural 
     Bicycle Facilities 

Regional Transportation Program 
     Fresno Airports 

 

 
Alternative Transportation Program 

    Rail Consolidation Subprogram 
Environmental Enhancement Program 

    School Bus Replacement  
     Transit Oriented Infrastructure for 

In-Fill 
Administrative/Planning Program 

    Fresno COG

2. The  City of Mendota ("claimant") is an eligible claimant of funds for local transportation purposes pursuant to 
         Local Agency Name 
 California Public Utilities Code Section 142257. 
 

3. The Fresno County Transportation Authority has adopted a Resolution of Apportionment for Fiscal Year 2021-2022 
setting 1.31% of $13,350,430 (or $175,159) for the Subprogram or Category of funds checked above and available to 
the claimant.  On behalf of claimant, I hereby request release of the funds to claimant in accordance with: 
(a) Monthly payments consistent with adopted percentage, based on actual receipts 
(b)  Compliance with Steps A and B of the Strategic Implementation Plan (SIP) – Local Agency Pass-Through 

Funding programs and Other Revenue Program Funding  
 

4. On behalf of claimant, I hereby certify as follows: 
(a)  That the Subprogram or Category of funds checked above are not being used to substitute for property tax 

funds which claimant had previously used for local transportation purposes.  Such substitution of property tax 
funds is prohibited by California Public Utilities Code Section 142257. 

(b) That claimant has segregated property tax revenues from claimant's other general fund revenues used to 
support the Subprogram or Category of funds checked above so that verification of non-substitution can be 
proved through audit or that the non-substitution of funds shall apply to claimant's entire general fund. 

(c) That claimant shall account for Subprogram or Category of funds checked above and received pursuant to 
Public Utilities Code Section 142257.  Claimant shall maintain current records in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles and shall separately record expenditures for each type of eligible purpose.  
Claimant shall make such records available to the Authority for inspection or audit at any time. 

 

5. Claimant understands that should financial or compliance audit exceptions be found, the Fresno County Transportation 
Authority will take immediate steps to resolve the exceptions in accordance with its adopted procedures. 

 

   

  

 _______________________________________________________ 

    Finance Director                                                   ________________ 

 
ATTACHMENT:   Evidence of Formal Action for Approval and Submittal    
   
  Approved by:  Fresno County Transportation Authority Board on: __________________________ 
 

Authorized Signature:  

Title:  

Date:  



 1 

BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE 

CITY OF MENDOTA, COUNTY OF FRESNO 
 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL   RESOLUTION NO. 21-46 
OF THE CITY OF MENDOTA IN THE  
MATTER CONCERNING LOCAL  
TRANSPORTATION PURPOSE FUNDS 
(MEASURE “C” EXTENSION FUNDS) 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Mendota is an eligible claimant of funds for Measure C 
Extension Local Transportation Pass-Through Projects and Program Funds pursuant to 
California Public Utilities Code Section 142257; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Fresno County Transportation Authority has adopted Resolution 
2021-01 designating Apportionments for FY 2021-2022 Measure C Extension Local 
Transportation Pass-Through Projects and Program Funds, and setting the City of 
Mendota’s percentages at the following:  
 

• 1.31% of $13,350,430 (or $175,159) for the Local Transportation Program, Local 
Allocation – Street Maintenance Category sub-program 

• 1.31% of $467,266 (or $6,131) for the Local Transportation Program, Local 
Allocation – ADA Compliance sub-program 

• 1.57% of $13,327,988 (or $209,684) for the Local Transportation Program, Local 
Allocation – Flexible Funding Category sub-program 

 
Which shall be the proportionate share of Measure C Extension Local Transportation 
Pass-Through Projects and Program Funds that the City shall be entitled to within the 
fiscal year. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1) The City of Mendota hereby submits its Local Transportation Purposes 
Certification and Claims for Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Measure C Extension Local 
Transportation Pass-Through Projects and Program Funds. 

2) The City of Mendota hereby requests the release of funds to the City on a 
monthly payment basis consistent with the adopted percentages listed above, 
based on actual receipts. 

3) The City Council of the City of Mendota further certifies: 
a) That Local Transportation Purpose Funds will not be used to substitute 

for property tax funds which the City of Mendota had previously used 
for local transportation purposes; and 

b) That the City of Mendota has and will segregate property tax revenues 
used to support local transportation purposes so that verification of 
non-substitution can be proved through audit; and 



 2 

c) That the City of Mendota shall separately account for Local 
Transportation Purposes Funds received, pursuant to Public Utilities 
Code section 142257. The City shall maintain records in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles, shall separately record 
expenditures for each type of eligible purpose, shall file a separate 
claim form for each sub-program allocation, and the City shall make 
such records available to the Authority for inspection or audit at any 
time; and 

d) The City of Mendota shall complete the reporting requirements no later 
than November 15, 2021, when claim forms are submitted. 

4) The City of Mendota understands that, should a financial or compliance audit 
reveal that the City of Mendota violated any of the requirements set forth in 
paragraph 3 (a), (b), or (c), that the Fresno County Transportation Authority may 
seek to take immediate steps to resolve the violation in accordance with its 
adopted procedures. 

5) The Council of the City of Mendota hereby authorizes the City Manager or 
Finance Officer to submit and execute any and all related documents.  
  

 
       ______________________________ 
       Rolando Castro, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 I, Celeste Cabrera-Garcia, City Clerk of the City of Mendota, do hereby certify 
that the foregoing resolution was duly adopted and passed by the City Council at a 
regular meeting of said Council, held at the Mendota City Hall on the 13th day of July, 
2021, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN:  
       ______________________________ 

Celeste Cabrera-Garcia, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



1 

 

AGENDA ITEM – STAFF REPORT 

TO: HONORABLE MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS 

FROM: NANCY DIAZ, FINANCE OFFICER 

VIA: CRISTIAN GONZALEZ, CITY MANAGER 

SUBJECT: ADOPTION OF A DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY 

DATE: JULY 13, 2021 
  

ISSUE 
Shall the City Council adopt Resolution No. 21-47, authorizing the adoption of a Debt 
Management Policy? 
 
BACKGROUND 
Debt management policies are written guidelines, allowances, and restrictions that guide the debt 
issuance practices of state of local governments, including the issuance process, management of 
a debt portfolio, and adherence to various laws and regulations. A debt management policy 
improves the quality of decisions, articulates policy goals, provides guidelines for the structure 
of debt issuance, and demonstrates a commitment to long-term capital and financial planning.  
Adherence to a debt management policy signals to rating agencies and the capital markets that a 
government agency is well managed and therefore is likely to meet its debt obligations in a 
timely manner. 
 
ANALYSIS 
Senate Bill No. 1029, adopted in 2016, amended Government Code Section 8855(i) to require an 
issuer to have a Debt Management Policy in place prior to the issuance of debt. This Debt 
Management Policy, as presented to City Council for approval, fulfils the City’s requirements for 
local debt policies in accordance with Government Code Section 8855(i). The Debt Management 
Policy identifies the reasons why the City may issue debt, designates responsibilities, defines 
several key terms, formalizes City policies regarding various debt structuring considerations, and 
outlines the ongoing requirements related to tax compliance, disclosure, and bond administration. 
 
As outlined in the regulations, an issuer’s debt policy must include the following items (A) 
through (E): 

A. The purposes for which the debt proceeds may be used 
B. The Types of debt that may be issued 
C. The relationship of the debt to, and integration with, the issuer’s capital improvement 

program or budget, if applicable 
D. Policy goals related to the issuer’s planning goals and objectives 
E. The internal control procedures that the issuer has implemented, or will implement, to 

ensure that the proceeds of the proposed debt issuance will be directed to the intended 
use. 



2 

 

 
As you can see, the debt management policy attached here includes those required items and is in 
compliance with Government Code Section 8855(i) as amended by SB 1029. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
There is no anticipated direct financial impact from the adoption of the proposed debt 
management policy. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends City Council adopt Resolution No. 21-47, authorizing the adoption of a Debt 
Management Policy. 
 
Attachment(s): 

1. Resolution No. 21-47 
2. Exhibit “A” - Debt Management Policy 



 1 

BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE 

CITY OF MENDOTA, COUNTY OF FRESNO 
 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL   RESOLUTION NO. 21-47 
OF THE CITY OF MENDOTA  
AUTHORIZING THE ADOPTION OF  
A DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Mendota endeavors to provide clear and comprehensive 
guidelines for the issuance and financial management of debt issued by the City; and 
 
 WHEREAS, State of California Senate Bill No. 1029 (“SB 1029”) requires that a 
debt issuer have a Debt Management Policy in place prior to the issuance of debt; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Mendota recognizes the need to fulfil local debt policy 
requirements in accordance with SB 1029; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Mendota recognizes the fiscal prudence of having 
documented debt disclosure guidelines related to tax compliance, disclosure, and debt 
administration. 
  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of 
Mendota hereby approves and adopts the Debt Management Policy, attached hereto as 
Exhibit “A”, consistent with SB 1029 and establishing fiscally prudent best practices 
related to the issuance and administration of debt.  
 
       ______________________________ 
       Rolando Castro, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 I, Celeste Cabrera-Garcia, City Clerk of the City of Mendota, do hereby certify 
that the foregoing resolution was duly adopted and passed by the City Council at a 
regular meeting of said Council, held at the Mendota City Hall on the 13th day of July, 
2021, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN:  
       ______________________________ 

Celeste Cabrera-Garcia, City Clerk 
 

 
 



Exhibit A 



Enacted on: 7/13/2021  Enacted by: City Council 

City of Mendota 
 

 
 

DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICY 
 
 
 

  
INTRODUCTION:  This Debt Management Policy of the City of Mendota (the “City”) was 

approved by the City Council on July 13, 2021. This Debt Management 
Policy may be amended by the City Council as it deems appropriate from 
time to time in the prudent management of the debt of the City. Any 
approval of debt by the City Council that is not consistent with this Debt 
Management Policy shall constituter a waiver of this Debt Management 
Policy.   

 
FINDINGS: This Debt Management Policy is intended to comply with Government 

Code section 8855, subdivision (i), effective on January 1, 2017, and shall 
govern all debt undertaken by the City.  

 
 The City hereby recognizes that a fiscally prudent debt policy is required 

to: 
• Maintain the City’s sound financial position 
• Ensure the City has the flexibility to respond to changes in future 

service priorities, revenues levels and operating expenses. 
• Protect the City’s credit-worthiness. 
• Ensure that all debt is structured to protect both current and future 

taxpayers, ratepayers and constituents of the City. 
• Ensure that the City’s debt is consistent with the City’s planning 

goals and objectives and capital improvement program or budget, 
as applicable. 

 
POLICIES:  A. Purposes for Which Debt May Be Issued 

1) Long-Term Debt. Long-term debt may be issued to finance the 
construction, acquisition, and rehabilitation of capital improvements 
and facilities, equipment and land to be owned and operated by the 
City.  



Enacted on: 7/13/2021  Enacted by: City Council 

a) Long-term debt financings are appropriate when the 
following conditions exist: 

• When the project to be finance is necessary to 
provide basic services. 

• When the project to be financed will provide benefit 
to constituents over multiple years. 

• When total debt does not constitute an unreasonable 
burden to the City and its taxpayer and ratepayers. 

• When the debt is used to refinance outstanding debt 
to produce debt service savings or to realize the 
benefits of a debt restructuring. 

b) Long-term debt financings are not appropriate for current 
operating expenses and routine maintenance expenses. 

c) The City may use long-term financings subject to the 
following conditions: 

• The project to be financed must be approved by the 
City Council. 

• The weighted average maturity of the debt (or the 
portion of the debt allocated to the project) will not 
exceed the average useful life of the project. 

• The City estimates that sufficient revenues will be 
available to service the debt through its maturity. 

• The City determines that the issuance of the debt 
will comply with the applicable state and federal 
law. 

2) Short-term debt. Short-term debt may be issued to provide financing 
for the City’s operational cash flows to maintain a steady and even 
cash flow balance. Short-term debt may also be used to finance short-
lived capital projects; for example, the City may undertake lease-
purchase financing for equipment. 

3) Financing on Behalf of Other Entities. The City may also find it 
beneficial to issue debt on behalf of other governmental agencies or 
private third parties to further the public purposes of the City. In such 
cases, the City shall take reasonable steps to confirm the financial 
feasibility of the project to be financed, the financial solvency of any 
borrower and that the issuance of such debt is consistent with the 
policies set forth herein. 

B) Types of Debt 

The following types of debt are allowable under this Debt Management 
Policy: 



Enacted on: 7/13/2021  Enacted by: City Council 

• General obligation bonds 

• Bond or grant anticipation notes 

• Tax and revenue anticipation notes 

• Lease revenue bonds, certificates of participation and lease-
purchase transactions 

• Other revenue bonds (including sales tax revenue bonds) and 
certificates of participation 

• Pension obligation bonds 

• Land-secured financings, such as special tax revenue bonds issued 
under the Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982, as 
amended, and limited obligation bonds issued under applicable 
assessment statutes 

• Tax increment financing to the extent permitted under state law 

• Conduit financings, such as financings for affordable rental 
housing and qualified 501c3 organizations 

The City may from time to time find that other forms of debt would be 
beneficial to further its public purposes and the City Council may 
approve such debt without an amendment of these Debt Management 
Policies. 

Debt shall be issued as fixed rate debt unless the City makes a specific 
determination as to why a variable rate issue would be beneficial to the 
City in a specific circumstance. 

C) Relationship of Debt to Capital Improvement Program and 
Budget 

New debt issues, and refinancing of existing debt, must be analyzed 
for compatibility within the City’s Ten-Year Capital Improvement 
Plan. 

The City shall strive to fund the upkeep and maintenance of its 
infrastructure and facilities due to normal wear and tear through the 
expenditure of available operating revenues. The City shall seek to 
avoid the use of debt to fund infrastructure and facilities improvements 
that are the result of normal wear and tear. 

The City shall seek to issue debt in a timely manner to avoid having to 
make unplanned expenditures for capital improvements or equipment 
form its general fund. 

D) Policy Goals Related to Planning Goals and Objectives 

The City is committed to long-term financial planning, maintaining 
appropriate reserves levels and employing prudent practices in 
governance, management and budget administration. The City intends 
to issue debt for the purposes stated in this Debt Management Policy 



Enacted on: 7/13/2021  Enacted by: City Council 

and to implement policy decisions incorporated in the City’s Five-
Year Financial Plan and its annual operating budget. 

It is a policy goal of the City to protect taxpayers, ratepayers and 
constituents by utilizing conservative financing methods and 
techniques to obtain the highest practical credit ratings (if applicable) 
and the lowest practical borrowing costs. 

The City will comply with applicable state and federal law as it 
pertains to the maximum term of debt and the procedures for levying 
and imposing any related taxes, assessments, rates and charges. 

When refinancing debt, it shall be the policy goal of the City to realize, 
whenever possible, and subject to any overriding non-financial policy 
considerations, (i) minimum net present value debt service savings 
equal to or greater than 3.0% of the refunded principal amount, and (ii) 
present value debt service savings equal to or greater than 100% of any 
escrow fund negative arbitrage. 

E) Internal Control Procedures 

When issuing debt, in addition to complying with the terms of these 
Debt Management Policies, the City shall comply with any other 
applicable policies regarding initial bond disclosure, continuing 
disclosure, post-issuance compliance, and investment of bond 
proceeds. 

The City will periodically review the requirements of and will remain 
in compliance with the following: 

• The City’s Disclosure Policies (discussed herein), 

• Any federal tax compliance requirements, including without 
limitation arbitrage and rebate compliance, related to any prior 
bond issues, and 

• The City’s investment policies as they relate to the investment 
of bond proceeds. 

It is the policy of the City to ensure that proceeds of the debt are spent 
only on lawful and intended uses. Whenever reasonably possible, 
proceeds of debt will be held by a third-party trustee and the City will 
submit written requisitions for such proceeds. The City will submit a 
requisition only after obtaining the signature of the Finance Director. 
In those cases where it is not reasonably possible for the proceeds of 
debt to be held by a third-party trustee, the Finance Director shall 
retain records of all expenditures of proceeds through the final 
payment date for the debt. 

F) Debit Limits 

The outstanding principal amount of debt described in Section B will 
not exceed two percent (2%) of the total assessed value of property in 



Enacted on: 7/13/2021  Enacted by: City Council 

the City, and debt service and lease payments incurred for financing 
purposes that are payable from the City’s general fund will not exceed 
five percent (5%) of operational appropriations. 

G) Debt-Related Disclosure Policies 

The issuance of municipal bonds generally requires both primary 
disclosure and ongoing (on continuing) disclosure. 

Primary Disclosure 

Primary disclosure is typically required for a public sale of the City’s 
bonds (through a competitive or negotiated sale). Primary disclosure 
documents include the preliminary official statement (“POS”) and 
official statement (“OS’). These documents are the primary marketing 
documents for the sales of the City’s bonds, and the City will engage 
financial consultants as needed for the preparation, review, and 
dissemination of these documents. City staff will review these 
documents for accuracy and inclusion of all material facts relevant to 
the issuance of the bonds. 

Continuing Disclosure 

According to the MSRB, continuing disclosure consists of important 
information about a municipal bond that arises after the initial issuance 
of the bonds. This information generally reflects the financial health or 
operating condition of the state of local government as it changes over 
time, or the occurrence of specific events that can have an impact on 
key features of the bonds. The specific annual disclosure reporting 
requirements will be listed in the Continuing Disclosure Certificate for 
the City’s bonds. 

Pursuant to SEC Rule 15c2-12, the City is required to disclose specific 
event notices in addition to annual financial information and operating 
data. The event disclosures required by SEC Rule 15c2-12 must be 
disclosed on the Electronic Municipal Market Access (“EMMA”) 
system within 10 business days of occurrence. The specific event 
disclosures will be listed in the Continuing Disclosure Certificate for 
the City’s bonds. 

The City may engage a continuing disclosure compliance consultant to 
assist with maintaining compliance with the requirements of SEC Rule 
15c2-12. 

H) Other Items 

Arbitrage Compliance 

Arbitrage is defined as profit earned when tax-exempt proceeds are 
invested at higher interest rates than the rates on the tax-exempt bonds 
issued. The federal government has imposed restrictions on tax-
exempt bonds related to arbitrage earnings. The ensure compliance, 
the City will monitor earnings on any invested bond proceeds 



Enacted on: 7/13/2021  Enacted by: City Council 

amounts. The City may engage consultants for arbitrage rebate 
compliance analysis. 

Records Retention 

The City will maintain all material records and information to comply 
with Section 103 of the IRS Code and all state required retention 
periods for debt issuances. 

Use of Debt Service Funds 

The City will maintain debt service funds to account for the issuance 
and payment of debt and related costs, in accordance with 
governmental Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (“GAAP”). 
Additionally, the City will maintain debt service funds in compliance 
with bond covenants. 

Reimbursement for Capital Costs Already Incurred 

Pursuant to US Treasury Regulation §1.150-2e, the City may prepare 
reimbursement resolutions to utilize bond proceeds to reimburse the 
City for capital costs already incurred. 

Investment of Bond Proceeds 

Bond proceeds will be invested in accordance with the City’s approved 
Investment Policy and the legal documents for the bonds. 

Insurance 

The City will maintain insurance coverage in compliance with bond 
covenants, providing proof to the bonds trustee or custodian, as 
necessary. 

Education and Training 

The City will designate staff for education and training to maintain 
compliance with changes in laws and regulations related to bond 
issuance and management. The City may engage a consultant for 
ongoing education and training. 



1 

 

AGENDA ITEM – STAFF REPORT 

TO: HONORABLE MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS 

FROM: JENNIFER LEKUMBERRY, DIRECTOR OF ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 

VIA: CRISTIAN GONZALEZ, CITY MANAGER 

SUBJECT: AMERICAN FEDERATION OF STATE, COUNTY AND MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES 
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING EXTENSION 

DATE: JULY 13, 2021 
  

ISSUE 
Shall the City Council adopt Resolution No. 21-48, approving a Memorandum of Understanding 
between the City of Mendota and the American Federation of State, County and Municipal 
Employees Local 2703 Mendota Chapter? 
 
BACKGROUND 
The most recently approved AFSCME MOU is set to expire on June 30, 2022. Additionally, 
AFSCME is currently scheduled to receive a 3% COLA this fiscal year increase per the current 
active agreement. The City and AFSCME have met and conferred in good faith and have arrived 
at an agreement to extend the existing contract for two year and delaying the already agreed upon 
COLA increase for July 1, 2023. The extension expiration date agreed upon by both parties is 
June 30, 2024. 
 
ANALYSIS 
As a result of the American Relief Plan (ARP), the City was notified that it would receive an 
allocation of 2.7 million dollars. An eligible expense under these funds is premium pay. The City 
negotiated and reached an agreement to utilize a portion of the ARP funds to pay for premium 
pay for employees who actually worked in person, interacting with other individuals and/or 
handling items that were handled by others from the start of the declared pandemic through June 
30, 2021. The agreement reached is to enter into a two-year agreement and utilize up to $12,500 
per employee for each hour actually worked at a rate of $13 per hour. This will exclude any 
hours that an employee was off of work on paid or unpaid leave and will also exclude any time 
teleworked per the ARP guidelines. The maximum payment of $12,500 will be for the 
employees actively employed and covered by AFSCME at the time of payment, contingent on 
the employee being employed by the City at the time of the payment. Further, the maximum 
benefit amount is $12,500, which includes the roll up costs associated with the lump sum and the 
breakdown is as follows: $11,408.75 is the maximum amount to be paid to employees and 
$1,091.25 is the maximum amount the City will use to pay for the City’s roll up costs associated 
with this premium payment, totaling $12,500. The City’s rollup costs of $1,091.25 is computed 
by the following breakdown: FICA 6.20%, SDI 1.08%, and Medicare at 1.45% per position, per 
lump sum pay. The roll up cost for any employee that worked less than 961.5 hours during the 
time frame abovementioned, will be computed utilizing the same breakdown of FICA 6.20%, 
SDI 1.08%, and Medicare at 1.45% of the total benefit earned. 



2 

 

FISCAL IMPACT 
There will be no fiscal impact since the funds used to for the premium pay will be paid as a pass 
through from the American Relief Plan funds that have been allocated to the City of Mendota. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 21-48, approving a Memorandum 
of Understanding between the City of Mendota and the American Federation of State, County 
and Municipal Employees Local 2703 Mendota Chapter. 
 
Attachment(s): 

1. AFSCME MOU 
2. Resolution No. 21-48 
3. Exhibit “A” - AFSCME MOU Extension Agreement 



1 of 30



2 of 30



3 of 30



4 of 30



5 of 30



6 of 30



7 of 30



8 of 30



9 of 30



10 of 30



11 of 30



12 of 30



13 of 30



14 of 30



15 of 30



16 of 30



17 of 30



18 of 30



19 of 30



20 of 30



21 of 30



22 of 30



23 of 30

EXHIBIT A



24 of 30



25 of 30

EXHIBIT B



26 of 30



27 of 30



28 of 30



29 of 30



30 of 30



 1 

BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE 

CITY OF MENDOTA, COUNTY OF FRESNO 
 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL   RESOLUTION NO. 21-48 
OF THE CITY OF MENDOTA APPROVING 
A MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF MENDOTA AND 
AMERICAN FEDERATION OF STATE,  
COUNTY, AND MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES  
LOCAL 2703 MENDOTA CHAPTER 
 
 WHEREAS, a Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) exists between the City 
of Mendota and American Federation of State, County, and Municipal Employees Local 
2703 Mendota Chapter (“Union”) (collectively, “Parties”) to promote harmonious 
relations between the Parties, to establish an equitable and peaceful procedure for the 
resolution of differences, and to establish wages, hours of work, and other terms and 
conditions of employment; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the MOU is scheduled to expire June 30, 2022; and 
 
 WHEREAS, an agreement has been reached between the Parties for a two-year 
extension of the current MOU; and 
 

WHEREAS, the proposed AFSCME MOU extension is attached as "Exhibit A". 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of 
Mendota hereby approves the Memorandum of Understanding between the City of 
Mendota and American Federation of State County and Municipal Employees Local 
2703 Mendota Chapter Bargaining Unit for the term of July 1, 2019 through June 30, 
2024, and authorizes the City Manager to execute all necessary documents in 
connection therewith. 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Rolando Castro, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 2 

ATTEST: 
 
 I, Celeste Cabrera-Garcia, City Clerk of the City of Mendota, do hereby certify 
that the foregoing resolution was duly adopted and passed by the City Council at a 
regular meeting of said Council, held at the Mendota City Hall on the 13th day of July, 
2021, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN:  
       ______________________________ 

Celeste Cabrera-Garcia, City Clerk 



Exhibit A 



MOU EXTENSION AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF MENDOTA AND THE AMERICAN FEDERATION OF STATE COUNTY AND 

MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES LOCAL 2703 MENDOTA CHAPTER  
 

 
This Side Letter of Agreement is made between the City of Mendota (“City”) and the American Federation 

of State County and Municipal Employees Local 2703 Mendota Chapter (“AFSCME”) to extend the current 

Memorandum Of Understanding (“MOU”) which is attached hereto as “Exhibit A”.  

Currently the MOU is set to expire on June 30, 2022. Both the City and AFSCME have met and conferred 

in good faith and have agreed to extend the current contract until June 30, 2024, and to delay the 3% 

COLA increase scheduled for July 1, 2021 until July 1, 2023. 

The City will issue a retroactive lump sum payment to all current AFSCME covered positions at a rate of 

$13 per hour actually worked in person, excluding time off regardless if paid or not and also excluding 

anytime teleworked, during the start of the pandemic through June 30, 2021 up to a total of $12,500 per 

current employee at time the payment is issued, which is anticipated to be mid-to-late July 2021 or early 

August 2021. If an AFSCME covered position is filled by promotion by an employee that worked for the City 

of Mendota during the pandemic, the City will count hours worked as a City employee during the pandemic 

retroactively in addition to the hours worked as an AFSCME covered position for payment of this retroactive 

premium pay up to the cap of $12,500.  

The maximum payment of $12,500 will be for the employees actively employed and covered by AFSCME 

at the time of payment, contingent on the employee being employed by the City at the time of the payment. 

Further, the maximum benefit amount is $12,500, which includes the roll up costs associated with the lump 

sum and the breakdown is as follows: $11,408.75 is the maximum amount to be paid to employees and 

$1,091.25 is the maximum amount the City will use to pay for the City’s roll up costs associated with this 

premium payment, totaling $12,500. The City’s rollup costs of $1,091.25 is computed by the following 

breakdown: FICA 6.20%, SDI 1.08%, and Medicare at 1.45% per position, per lump sum pay. The roll up 

cost for any employee that worked less than 961.5 hours during the time frame abovementioned, will be 

computed utilizing the same breakdown of FICA 6.20%, SDI 1.08%, and Medicare at 1.45% of the total 

benefit earned. 

Maximum benefit breakdown is noted below: 

American 
Rescue 

Plan Roll Up Costs Total
$11,408.75 $1,091.25 $12,500.00

FT
FICA 6.20% $775.00

SDI 1.08% $135.00

Medicare 1.45% $181.25

Total $1,091.25  



MOU EXTENSION AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF MENDOTA AND THE AMERICAN FEDERATION OF STATE COUNTY AND 

MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES LOCAL 2703 MENDOTA CHAPTER  
 

In good faith, with the City expecting to receive the funds in the middle of July, the City foresees August 5, 

2021 as the latest day for payment to be issued to employees, however the City will issue payment to 

employees the first payroll after receiving the funds, which may be a sooner date.  

 
FOR THE CITY OF MENDOTA   FOR THE UNION 
 
 

        
_______________________________  _________________________________ 
Cristian Gonzalez, City Manager   Debbie Macias, AFSCME Representative 
      
 
       
Dated:  ________________________  Dated:  ___________________________ 

 
 
 
______________________________  _______________________________ 
John Kinsey, City Attorney   Henry Sanchez, President 
        
                                         
 
Dated:  _________________________  Dated:  ___________________________ 
 
 
 
      _______________________________ 
      Armando Sandoval, Vice- President 
        
                                         
      Dated:  ___________________________ 
 
 



1 

 

AGENDA ITEM – STAFF REPORT 

TO: HONORABLE MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS 

FROM: JENNIFER LEKUMBERRY, DIRECTOR OF ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES 

VIA: CRISTIAN GONZALEZ, CITY MANAGER 

SUBJECT: MENDOTA POLICE OFFICERS ASSOCIATION MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

DATE: JULY 13, 2021 
  

ISSUE 
Shall the City Council adopt Resolution No. 21-49, approving a Memorandum of Understanding 
between the City of Mendota and Operating Engineers Local Union No. 3, on behalf of the 
Mendota Police Officers Association? 
 
BACKGROUND 
The most recently approved MPOA MOU expired on June 30, 2020. The City and the MPOA 
have met and conferred in good faith and have arrived at an agreement. 
 
ANALYSIS 
As a result of the American Relief Plan (ARP), the City was notified that it would receive an 
allocation of 2.7 million dollars. An eligible expense under these funds is premium pay. The City 
negotiated and reached an agreement to utilize a portion of the ARP funds to pay for premium 
pay for employees who actually worked in person, interacting with other individuals and/or 
handling items that were handled by others from the start of the declared pandemic through June 
30, 2021. The agreement reached is to enter into a two-year agreement and utilize up to $12,500 
per employee for each hour actually worked at a rate of $13 per hour. This will exclude any 
hours that an employee was off of work on paid or unpaid leave and will also exclude any time 
teleworked per the ARP guidelines. The maximum payment of $12,500 will be for the 
employees actively employed and covered by the MPOA at the time of payment, contingent on 
the employee being employed by the City at the time of the payment. Further, the maximum 
benefit amount is $12,500, which includes the roll up costs associated with the lump sum and the 
breakdown is as follows: $11,408.75 is the maximum amount to be paid to employees and 
$1,091.25 is the maximum amount the City will use to pay for the City’s roll up costs associated 
with this premium payment, totaling $12,500. The City’s rollup costs of $1,091.25 is computed 
by the following breakdown: FICA 6.20%, SDI 1.08%, and Medicare at 1.45% per position, per 
lump sum pay. The roll up cost for any employee that worked less than 961.5 hours during the 
time frame abovementioned, will be computed utilizing the same breakdown of FICA 6.20%, 
SDI 1.08%, and Medicare at 1.45% of the total benefit earned. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
There will be no fiscal impact since the funds used to for the premium pay will be paid as a pass 
through from the American Relief Plan funds that have been allocated to the City of Mendota. 
 



2 

 

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 21-49, approving a Memorandum 
of Understanding between the City of Mendota and Operating Engineers Local Union No. 3, on 
behalf of the Mendota Police Officers Association. 
 
Attachment(s): 

1. Resolution No. 21-49 
2. Exhibit “A” - MPOA MOU 



 1 

BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE 

CITY OF MENDOTA, COUNTY OF FRESNO 
 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL   RESOLUTION NO. 21-49 
OF THE CITY OF MENDOTA APPROVING 
THE MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING  
BETWEEN THE CITY OF MENDOTA AND 
OPERATING ENGINEERS LOCAL UNION  
NO. 3, ON BEHALF OF THE MENDOTA  
POLICE OFFICERS ASSOCIATION 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Mendota (“City”) entered into an agreement, dated July 1, 
2019, with the Mendota Police Officers Association (“Association”), and Operating 
Engineers Local Union No. 3 (“Union”) (collectively, “Parties”) to promote harmonious 
relations between the City, the Association, and the Union, to establish an equitable and 
peaceful procedure for the resolution of differences, and to establish wages, hours of 
work, and other terms and conditions of employment (“Agreement”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Memorandum of Understanding expired on June 30, 2020; and 
 
 WHEREAS, an agreement has been reached between the Parties; and 
 

WHEREAS, the proposed Mendota Police Officer Association Memorandum of 
Understanding is attached as "Exhibit A". 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of 
Mendota hereby approves the Memorandum of Understanding between the City of 
Mendota and the Mendota Police Officers Association and Operating Engineers Local 
Union No. 3 for the term of July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2023, and authorizes the City 
Manager to execute all necessary documents in connection therewith.  
 
       ______________________________ 
       Rolando Castro, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 2 

ATTEST: 
 
 I, Celeste Cabrera-Garcia, City Clerk of the City of Mendota, do hereby certify 
that the foregoing resolution was duly adopted and passed by the City Council at a 
regular meeting of said Council, held at the Mendota City Hall on the 13th day of July, 
2021, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSENT:   
ABSTAIN:  
       ______________________________ 

Celeste Cabrera-Garcia, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



Exhibit A 







































1 

 

AGENDA ITEM – STAFF REPORT 

TO: HONORABLE MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS 

FROM: CRISTIAN GONZALEZ, CITY MANAGER 

SUBJECT: MANAGEMENT RESOLUTION EXTENSION 

DATE: JULY 13, 2021 
  

ISSUE 
Shall the City Council adoption Resolution No. 21-50, revising the Management Benefit 
Resolution? 
 
BACKGROUND 
The current Management Benefit Resolution allows for an annual consideration of benefits and 
wages due to its year-to-year agreement. The City and Unrepresented Management group have 
met and conferred in good faith and have arrived at an agreement to extend the existing benefit 
resolution for two-year without an annual consideration during that time. 
 
ANALYSIS 
As a result of the American Relief Plan (ARP), the City was notified that it would receive an 
allocation of 2.7 million dollars. An eligible expense under these funds is premium pay. The City 
negotiated and reached an agreement to utilize a portion of the ARP funds to pay for premium 
pay for employees who actually worked in person, interacting with other individuals and/or 
handling items that were handled by others from the start of the declared pandemic through June 
30, 2021. The agreement reached is to enter into a two-year agreement and utilize up to $12,500 
per employee for each hour actually worked at a rate of $13 per hour. This will exclude any 
hours that an employee was off of work on paid or unpaid leave and will also exclude any time 
teleworked per the ARP guidelines. The maximum payment of $12,500 will be for the 
employees actively employed and covered by the unrepresented management group at the time 
of payment, contingent on the employee being employed by the City at the time of the payment. 
Further, the maximum benefit amount is $12,500, which includes the roll up costs associated 
with the lump sum and the breakdown is as follows: $11,408.75 is the maximum amount to be 
paid to employees and $1,091.25 is the maximum amount the City will use to pay for the City’s 
roll up costs associated with this premium payment, totaling $12,500. The City’s rollup costs of 
$1,091.25 is computed by the following breakdown: FICA 6.20%, SDI 1.08%, and Medicare at 
1.45% per position, per lump sum pay. The roll up cost for any employee that worked less than 
961.5 hours during the time frame abovementioned, will be computed utilizing the same 
breakdown of FICA 6.20%, SDI 1.08%, and Medicare at 1.45% of the total benefit earned. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
There will be no fiscal impact since the funds used to for the premium pay will be paid as a pass 
through from the American Relief Plan funds that have been allocated to the City of Mendota. 
 



2 

 

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 21-50, revising the Management 
Benefit Resolution. 
 
Attachment(s): 

1. Resolution No. 21-50 



 

 
1 

BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE  

CITY OF MENDOTA, COUNTY OF FRESNO 
 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL   RESOLUTION NO. 21-50 
OF THE CITY OF MENDOTA IN THE  
MATTER OF REVISING THE  
MANAGEMENT BENEFIT RESOLUTION  
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Mendota has adopted resolutions 
setting the compensation of non represented City employees, hereinafter “Management 
Employees”; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Mendota wishes to modify the benefits 
and compensation of Management Employees, as set forth by resolutions 14-13, 15-49, 
18-26, 19-22, and 19-43. 
  
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 
Mendota that the compensation and benefits policy for Management Employees is set, 
established, and modified to read in full as follows: 
 
1) PERSONNEL RULES: Mendota Personnel rules, adopted March 22, 2016, by 
Resolution 16-14 are enforceable and incorporated herein by reference.  
 
2) SALARY SCHEDULE: Rates for "Employees" shall be as set forth in a Step Plan 
to be revised by population periodically based on salary survey of like cities. 

 
3)  COLA: Management Employees shall receive an annual cost of living salary 
increase of: 
   

The City will issue a retroactive lump sum payment to all current management 
employees covered by this resolution at a rate of $13 per hour actually worked in 
person, excluding time off regardless if paid or not and also excluding anytime 
teleworked, during the start of the pandemic through June 30, 2021 up to a total of 
$12,500 per current employee at time the payment is issued, which is anticipated to be 
mid-late July or early August. If any management position was filled by promotion by an 
employee that worked for the City of Mendota during the pandemic, the City will count 
hours worked as a City employee during the pandemic retroactively in addition to the 
hours worked as a management employee for payment of this retroactive premium pay 
up to the cap of $12,500.  
 
The City wants to clarify that payment will be made for each eligible and current 
employee, at the time of payment distribution. Further, the maximum benefit amount is 
$12,500, which includes the roll up costs associated with the lump sum and the 
breakdown is as follows: $11,408.75 is the maximum amount to be paid to employees 



 

 
2 

and $1,091.25 is the maximum amount the City will use to pay for the City’s roll up costs 
associated with this premium payment, totaling $12,500. The City’s rollup costs of 
$1,091.25 is computed by the following breakdown: FICA 6.20%, SDI 1.08%, and 
Medicare at 1.45% per position, per lump sum pay. The roll up cost for any employee 
that worked less than 961.5 hours during the time frame abovementioned, will be 
computed utilizing the same breakdown of FICA 6.20%, SDI 1.08%, and Medicare at 
1.45% of the total benefit earned. 
 
Maximum benefit breakdown is noted below: 

American 
Rescue 

Plan Roll Up Costs Total
$11,408.75 $1,091.25 $12,500.00

FT
FICA 6.20% $775.00

SDI 1.08% $135.00

Medicare 1.45% $181.25

Total $1,091.25  
 
In good faith, with the City expecting to receive the funds in the middle of July, the City 
foresees August 5, 2021 as the latest day for payment to be issued to employees, 
however the City will issue payment to employees the first payroll after receiving the 
funds, which may be a sooner date.  
 
4) TOTAL COMPENSATION: All compensation paid to or on behalf of all City 
Employees, including benefits, insurances, shall be considered a part of Employees 
total compensation package. The Management Compensation Plan shall apply to all 
employees classified as "Management". Such Employees shall continue their eligibility 
for existing or future compensation programs, which may be applicable to other 
Employees unless made inapplicable by Council action.  
 
5) STEP INCREASES: Management Employees shall be evaluated annually no 
later than the anniversary date of the employee’s appointment to his/her position by the 
City Manager. Employees who receive "satisfactory" or better on their overall evaluation 
shall receive a step increase consistent with the Step Plan.  
 

6) PENSION PLANS: The benefit contract in effect between the City of Mendota 
and the Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) on behalf of eligible permanent 
full-time employees of this unit is 2% at age 62. The employee will make the full 
employee contributions to the plan. The employer will make the full employer 
contributions to the plan.  

 
 All new employees hired on or after January 1, 2013 and are new Miscellaneous 
members of Public Employees Retirement System (PERS), pursuant to the Public 
Employee’s Pension Reform Act (PEPRA) of 2013, the City shall provide the PERS 



 

 
3 

Miscellaneous 2% @ 62 Retirement Plan. All PERS contribution paid by the employees 
shall be paid on a pre-tax basis as per IRS code. 
  
 The City shall maintain the existing Section 401(k) Pension Plan. Employees are 
eligible to make contributions after 6 months of regular full-time employment.  
 
 For safety personnel who is excluded from the CalPERS contract, the City will 
contribute 5% of each participating employee’s base salary, contingent on participating 
employee contributing at least three percent (3%) of his/her base salary within the plan. 
 
 SDI: City shall pay the full amount of Employee’s S.D.I. 

 
7) ADMINISTRATION DAYS: Employees shall receive ten (10) Administrative leave 
days on July 1st of each fiscal year. Unused leave can either be paid out once during the 
fiscal year or up to 20 hours of unused administrative leave may be carried over to the 
following fiscal year.  
 
8) VACATION:  Vacation shall accrue at the rate of 6.666 hours per month. 
Employees with at least 5 years plus one day of service shall accrue vacation at the rate 
of 10 hours per month to be carried over annually. Management employees may 
receive payment at their regular salary rate of up to 80 hours of accrued vacation time 
per fiscal year.  
 
9) SICK LEAVE: Employees shall accrue eight (8) hours per month accumulated 
sick leave. Employees who become ill while on vacation may charge their sick leave 
accounts for the time sick. Sick leave to be carried over annually.  
 
10) BEREAVEMENT LEAVE: Employees shall be entitled to use up to 24 hours 
bereavement leave for each occurrence, not to exceed a total of 48 hours, upon 
approval of City Manager.  
 
11) UNUSED SICK LEAVE: Upon death, retirement, resignation, layoff, or 
termination, unused accumulated sick leave shall be paid at the Employee’s last salary 
rate as follows: More than 5 years City service: 25%; more than 10 years City service: 
35%; more than 20 years City service: 50%. 
 
12) HOLIDAY: Employees shall have thirteen (13) 8-hour and three (3) 4-hour paid 
Holidays annually, and any day or part of day declared by the President of the United 
States or Governor of California to be a national day of mourning or celebration. 
Holidays shall be same as for Represented General Employees, and if additional 
Holidays are added, Management Employees shall have their Holidays match. In the 
interest of maintaining a minimum level of service to the community, management 
employees may be required to work on a declared day of mourning. The employee will 
be compensated at their regular rate of pay but shall be entitled to eight (8) hours of 
compensatory time off to be taken at the Employees discretion with approval of the City 
Manager. 



 

 
4 

 
13) FLOATING HOLIDAY: Employees shall receive one 8-hour day of floating 
holiday leave on July 1st of each year. Unused floating holiday leave will be paid out 
once per fiscal year.   
 
14) HEALTH BENEFITS: Employees shall receive fully paid City health benefits for 
themselves and their dependents which shall include: Medical, Dental, and Vision. 
Plans should be equal to or better than what plans represented General Employees 
receive. Employee covered by Health Insurance from different source other than City 
may elect to receive payment in lieu of coverage in the amount of $500.00.  
 
15) LIFE INSURANCE: Employees shall receive a Fifty-Thousand-dollar 
($50,000.00) Term Life Insurance Policy, paid by the City.  
 
16) EDUCATIONAL REIMBURSEMENT PROGRAM: Employees shall be 
reimbursed for tuition and book expenses actually incurred ($334 per academic term, 
not to exceed $1,000 per fiscal year) for attending classes on their own time, which 
would be a direct benefit to the individual employee and the City, as approved by the 
City Manager. In the event any employee receiving such reimbursement resigns his/her 
position, all reimbursement for tuition and/or book expenses paid to said employee 
within the past 12 months shall be returned to the City by resigning employee. 
 
17) OVERTIME: Employees are "Management Personnel" and are not eligible for 
overtime pay. 
 
18) REST PERIODS: Employees shall be allowed rest periods not to exceed fifteen 
(15) minutes each, once before lunch and once after lunch, during work shift without 
loss of pay.  
 
19) HOURS OF WORK: Daily hours of work for employees shall be assigned by the 
City Manager as required to meet the operational needs of the City. City Hall 
Management staff 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. Public Works Director and Building Inspector, 
Public Works Superintendent shall maintain similar hours as Public Works staff or as 
assigned by the City Manager.  
 
20) CITY AND PERSONAL VEHICLE: A City vehicle and fuel will be assigned to the 
City Manager, the Chief of Police, the Police Lieutenant, the Public Works Director, 
Public Works Superintendent, Chief Plant Operator, Public Utilities Director, and the 
Building Inspector for his/her use in performing his/her official duties that, except as 
otherwise authorized by the City Council, shall be returned to the city yard at the earlier 
of the end of the shift or performance of such official duties. 

 
 A City vehicle and fuel will be available to management staff not assigned a City 
vehicle, to use for City business. In the event that a City vehicle is not available, 
employee’s use of personal vehicle for City business shall be compensated at a rate 
established by the IRS mileage rate.  



 

 
5 

 
 The City Manager, Public Works Director, Chief of Police, and Police Lieutenant 
are permitted to use such assigned vehicles to commute between work and personal 
residence. 

 
21) LEAGUE AND DEPARTMENT CONFERENCES: Employees are authorized to 
attend appropriate meetings and conferences relating to their employment activities and 
to be given a flat rate per diem rate, lodging, and mileage, as set by City Council. 
 
22) ANNUAL RECONSIDERATION: The above listed items to remain in force. 
Employees and the City Council agree that employees will not make any additional 
requests pertaining to this benefit resolution for two fiscal years (FY21/22 and FY22/23) 
and will reopen discussions on or about May 1, 2023 for considerations that will take 
effect on July 1, 2023 regarding the Management Employee’s Compensation and 
Benefit Plans and to make changes or additions with a new resolution amending this 
resolution.  

      
   ____________________________ 

         Rolando Castro, Mayor  
 
ATTEST: 
 
 I, Celeste Cabrera-Garcia, City Clerk of the City of Mendota, do hereby certify 
that the foregoing resolution was duly adopted and passed by the City Council at a 
regular meeting of said Council, held at the Mendota City Hall on the 13th day of July 
2021 by the following vote: 
 
AYES:   
NOES:  
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN:  

____________________________ 
Celeste Cabrera-Garcia, City Clerk 

 



1 

 

AGENDA ITEM – STAFF REPORT 

TO: HONORABLE MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS 

FROM: CELESTE CABRERA-GARCIA, CITY CLERK 

VIA: CRISTIAN GONZALEZ, CITY MANAGER 

SUBJECT: APPROVING ENTRANCE INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH RRM DESIGN GROUP FOR 
SERVICES NEEDED FOR THE MENDOTA POLICE DEPARTMENT PROJECT 

DATE: JULY 13, 2021 
  

ISSUE 
Should the City Council adopt Resolution No. 21-51, approving entrance into an agreement with 
RRM Design Group for services needed for the Mendota Police Department Project? 
 
BACKGROUND 
In 2016 the City of Mendota (the “City”) received funding for the construction of a new police 
department. Since then, there has been ongoing discussions regarding the development of a 
combined City Hall and Police Station building (the “Project”) and the Council has decided to 
move forward with the construction of the Project. 
 
Since 2020, the City has contracted with various firms including program management services, 
a financial advising firm, as well as other firms to prepare necessary documentation and provide 
necessary services for the issuance of bonds to refund and prepay outstanding City obligations 
and to finance the Project. 
 
ANALYSIS 
The proposed agreement with RRM Design Group (“RRM”) would authorize RRM to provide 
design and construction services for the Project, including providing a planning and preliminary 
project assessment, preparing design development and construction documents, assisting during 
the bidding phase, and assisting during construction and project completion phases. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
Approximately $495,015 to be paid through existing Project funds. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 21-51, approving entrance into an 
agreement with RRM Design Group for services needed for the Mendota Police Department 
Project. 
 
Attachment(s): 

1. Agreement with RRM Design Group 
2. Resolution No. 21-51 

 



 

 

3765 S. Higuera St., Ste. 102 • San Luis Obispo, CA 93401 

p: (805) 543-1794 • f: (805) 543-4609 

www.rrmdesign.com 
a California corporation  Lenny Grant, Architect C26973   Robert Camacho, PE 76597  Steve Webster, LS 7561  Jeff Ferber, LA 2844 

 

June 25, 2021 
 
Transmitted via email: jeff@tamkin.com 

Client, Owner, and Payee: 
Christian Gonzalez, City Manager 
City of Mendota 
643 Quince St,  
Mendota, CA 93640 
 
Developer and Program Manager: 
Jeff Tamkin, President 
Public Facilities Investment Corporation (PFIC) 
11755 Wilshire Boulevard, Suite 2350 
Los Angeles, CA 90025 
 
 
RE:  Mendota City Hall and Police Station Construction Documents   

Proposed Scope of Services  
 
Dear Mr. Gonzalez and Mr. Tamkin, 
 
RRM Design Group (RRM) thanks you for the opportunity to support the City of Mendota and 
Public Facilities Improvement Group (PFIC) in the process to design such an important project 
for the City. We look forward to continuing to work with the City, PFIC, and stakeholders on 
seeing this project through. 

PROJECT UNDERSTANDING 
We understand the City of Mendota wishes to design and construct a new needed city hall and 
police station based on the approved concept design prepared previously.  
 
RRM has provided a scope of services based on general direction from PFIC and recommended 
services.  
 
It is understood that the contract will be held by the City and invoices will be paid directly by 
the City of Mendota, legal owner of the property. PFIC will be copied on and review invoices. 

  



Mendota City Hall and Police Station Construction Documents 
Proposed Scope of Services 

June 25, 2021 
Page 2 of 11 

 

 

 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

Task 1: Planning and Preliminary Project Assessment 
Subtask 1.1: Schematic Design 
 
Task 2: Design Development and Construction Documents 
Subtask 2.1: Design Development 
Subtask 2.2: Construction Documents 
Subtask 2.3: Permitting  
 
Task 3: Bidding Phase 
Subtask 3.1: Bidding 
 
Task 4: Construction and Project Completion 
Subtask 4.1: Construction Administration 
Subtask 4.2: Record Drawings and Project Closeout  
 
Task 1: Planning and Preliminary Project Assessment 
Subtask 1.1: Schematic Design 
Based on the conceptual design package previously approved, RRM will prepare schematic plans 
and an entitlement set for City approval.  
 

Objectives: 
 Gather site information and prepare schematic plans including level 1 systems coordination to 

identify and resolve any major conflicts 
 To obtain stakeholder and City approval on the project requirements and exterior design 

aesthetics 
 Assist with the selection of a Construction Manager At Risk for design assistance and 

construction of the project 
  



Mendota City Hall and Police Station Construction Documents 
Proposed Scope of Services 

June 25, 2021 
Page 3 of 11 

 

 

 

Deliverables: 
 Project schedule  
 Drawings to support site design application 
 One (1) architectural site plan  
 One (1) architectural floor plan  
 One (1) architectural reflected ceiling plan  
 One (1) architectural roof plan 
 One (1) set of architectural building elevations 
 One (1) set of architectural building sections 
 One (1) landscape plan 
 One (1) grading and drainage plan 
 One (1) structural foundation and floor plan 
 One (1) electrical site and floor plan 
 One (1) mechanical floor and roof plan 
 One (1) exterior materials board 

 
Meetings: 
 One (1) working project status meeting to review the schematic drawings (remote meeting) 
 One (1) draft final design review meeting and presentation 
 One (1) planning commission approval meeting (if required) 
 One (1) day of CMAR interviews 

 
Client Participation: 
 Attendance at working project status meetings 
 Attendance at planning approval meetings 
 Provide timely decisions regarding the design 
 Assistance with preparation and processing of planning application 

 
Task 2: Design Development and Construction Documents 
Subtask 2.1: Design Development  
Based on the conceptual design documents and project budget, RRM and our consultant team 
will develop the building systems for the project. In the design development task, the 
architectural and engineering team will design a layout of the basic engineering systems.  
 
Decisions made in this phase are evaluated based on operational needs, durability, operations 
and maintenance, initial and long-term costs, sustainability, and other priorities identified in the 
program. We recommend a careful analysis at this stage to develop the most energy efficient 
design possible. 
 
 



Mendota City Hall and Police Station Construction Documents 
Proposed Scope of Services 

June 25, 2021 
Page 4 of 11 

 

 

 

Objectives: 
 Work with the PFIC and City to review the project design and budget to align with short and 

long-term expectations 
 Develop 100% design development package to include: 

o Architectural and engineering drawings 
o Outline specifications 

 
Deliverables: 
 One (1) set of design development drawings 
 One (1) set of design development outline specifications 
 One (1) interior finishes materials board  

 
Meetings: 
 One (1) design development progress/coordination meeting (remote) 
 One (1) meeting to review the design development package  

 
Client Participation: 
 Attend scheduled design development meetings 
 Provide timely decisions regarding the design 
 Review and approval of design development package 

 
Subtask 2.2: Construction Documents 
Based on the approved design development drawings, specifications, and the construction cost 
estimate, RRM and our consultants will proceed with the preparation of the Construction 
Documents.  
 

Objectives: 
 Develop 100% construction documents package for permit submittal to include: 

o Architectural drawings 
o Civil engineering drawings provided by developer’s contracted engineer 
o MEP engineering provided by RRM’s outside consultants 
o Landscape architecture provided by in-house team 
o Specifications 
o Title 24 reports 
o Structural calculations 

 RRM in-house QA/QC process 
 

Deliverables: 
 One (1) 90% construction document package (for Client review and permit submittal) 
 Progress certification to City – via digital submittal and conference call. Additional meeting as 

optional task, as needed 



Mendota City Hall and Police Station Construction Documents 
Proposed Scope of Services 

June 25, 2021 
Page 5 of 11 

 

 

 

 
Meetings: 
 One (1) meeting to review City team comments to the 90% construction document set 

 
Client Participation: 
 Attendance of City/RRM team meetings 
 Provide timely decisions regarding design and cost 
 Provide Standard Division 1 and General Condition specifications 
 

Furnishing and Equipment Note: It is assumed in this process that RRM will specify most 
equipment in the specifications in conjunction with the City; they can be Client provided or contractor 
provided. The communications, radio equipment, A/V, and security equipment and design installation is 
assumed a separate vendor that the City will hire/is contracted with. RRM will coordinate with that 
vendor in the design process to define contractor installed conduit to support vendor installed wire and 
equipment.  
 
Subtask 2.3: Permitting 
RRM will submit the 100% construction documents to the City Building Department for plan 
check review at the end of the construction document task. RRM will respond to the plan check 
comments received in writing and prepare documentation to achieve permit-ready status. 
During this task, modification to the documents may also occur as a result of City team review 
comments and RRM’s in-house QA/QC process. RRM will incorporate City agency plan check, 
RRM in-house QA/QC, and City review comments into the 100% construction document set 
for the project bidding process. 
 

Objectives: 
 Submit to City for building permit 
 Respond to plan check comments 

 
Deliverables: 
 One (1) set of 100% construction documents submittal for bidding (Building Department 

comments included) 
   
Meetings: 
 One (1) meeting to review plan check comments with the Building Department 

 
Client Participation: 
 Payment of plan check fees 
 Attendance of RRM/agency meetings 

 



Mendota City Hall and Police Station Construction Documents 
Proposed Scope of Services 

June 25, 2021 
Page 6 of 11 

 

 

 

Task 3: Bidding Phase 
Subtask 3.1: Bidding 
RRM and our consultants will assist during the final CMAR contract phase by participating in a 
pre-bid conference, evaluating and advising the City and PFIC with regards to substitution 
requests, and responding to questions from prospective bidders (subcontractors) in the form of 
an addendum.  
 
This task is assumed to complete after or concurrently with permitting. RRM will assist in value 
engineering options only as limited to substitutions to in-kind as designed systems. 
 

Objectives: 
 Respond to bidder questions 
 Prepare one (1) addendum 

 
Meetings: 
 One (1) pre-bid conference with prospective bidders/subcontractors 
 One (1) bid opening  

 
Client Participation: 
 Attendance at the pre-bid conference 

 
Task 4: Construction and Project Completion 
Subtask 4.1: Construction Administration 
RRM and our consultants will assist during the construction phase by reviewing and responding 
to contractor submittals and requests for additional information, reviewing and responding to 
requests by the City or contractor for changes in the work, observing and advising regarding the 
construction progress and conformance to the contract documents. We will attend regular 
progress meetings and assist the City in the preparation of a punch list and will advise the City 
on the status of the project with respect to substantial completion and final completion. 
 

Objectives: 
 Respond to requests for information 
 Issue supplemental information/instructions 
 Review payment applications 
 Review change proposals and change orders 
 Prepare field observation reports when needed 
 Prepare punch-list 
 Attendance at construction project meetings: on-site once (1) per month or at special stages 

fifteen (15) visits total max.; remote call-in once (1) per month opposite of on-site visits 
 



Mendota City Hall and Police Station Construction Documents 
Proposed Scope of Services 

June 25, 2021 
Page 7 of 11 

 

 

 

Meetings: 
 One (1) pre-construction meeting 
 Twenty-six (26) on-site project meetings/construction observations  
 One (1) preliminary punch list walk-through 
 One (1) final construction completion meeting 

 
Client Participation: 
 Attendance at job site meetings 

 
Subtask 4.2: Record Drawings and Project Closeout 
RRM and our consultants will prepare a set of record drawings to include the revisions made 
during construction to provide PFIC and the City with a complete record of the project as 
completed.  
 

Objectives: 
 Review of contractor-provided record as-built drawings and operations and maintenance 

manuals 
 

Deliverables: 
 Initial record drawing set with contractor review markups and with RRM comments attached 

 
Client Participation: 
 Review and provide comment to initial record drawing set 
 
Estimated Time Frame: 
 Six (6) weeks 

 
O: Optional Tasks 
Subtask O.1: Cost Estimate 
RRM will provide a schematic design level itemized and design development level construction 
cost estimate of the building and site construction costs including contractor’s general 
conditions and escalation contingencies. RRM will review the cost estimate for conformance to 
the scope of the drawing package and present to the City and PFIC for alignment and cross 
reference with the CMAR’s estimates. 
  
Subtask O.2: Commissioning for Cal Green Code 
RRM consultants will prepare the documentation for the commissioning document that is 
required by the California Green Building Code for buildings under 10,000 sf.  This information 
will be provided as part of the permit submittal package.  It is required for permit but the 



Mendota City Hall and Police Station Construction Documents 
Proposed Scope of Services 

June 25, 2021 
Page 8 of 11 

 

 

 

Owner may choose to have it completed by a separate commissioning agent.  RRM’s mechanical 
consultant can provide this as part of the package.  
 
Subtask O.3: Geotechnical Report 
RRM and Consultants will provide preparation of the Geotechnical Investigation Report and 
services to prepare including field exploration and soil sampling, laboratory testing, engineering 
evaluation and report preparation.  The report will further provide liquefaction evaluation and 
an estimate of the potential seismic-induced settlement.  In addition, services provided in 
conjunction with the preparation of the Engineering Geology Investigation Report include a 
program of field reconnaissance and mapping, geologic and geotechnical site research, geologic 
and engineering analysis, and preparation of a final report.   
 

SERVICES AND/OR INFORMATION TO BE PROVIDED BY CLIENT 

 Title report 
 Payment of permit fees 
 Geotechnical report 
 Systems and equipment design and coordination not included in services 

LIMITATIONS OF SCOPE AND EXCLUSIONS 
Please note that the tasks to be performed by the RRM team are limited purely to those 
outlined above. Substantive changes requested by the Client or changes in the Client’s program 
or direction that are inconsistent with prior approvals are subject to additional services fees. 
Any additional services that RRM Design Group is asked to perform over and beyond those 
described above will be billed on a negotiated and Client-approved, fixed-fee, or hourly basis per 
the terms of the attached Exhibit A-1. 
 
The following services or tasks are specifically excluded from the scope: 

 LEED documentation 
 Design and documents of any off-site improvements beyond face of curb or at driveways 
 Extension or repair of off-site utilities beyond the property line 
 Community outreach meetings 
 Removal or undergrounding of overhead utilities 
 Commissioning for CalGreen or LEED 
 Digital AutoCAD as-built drawings and files 
 Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan – provided by contractor 
 Fire protection drawings and calculations – provided by contractor as deferred submittal 
 Retaining wall design 



Mendota City Hall and Police Station Construction Documents 
Proposed Scope of Services 

June 25, 2021 
Page 9 of 11 

 

 

 

 Temporary facilities 
 Non-conventional structural foundation design such as caissons (standard soil conditions 

are assumed) 
 Any soil contamination studies or investigation 
 Any soil and geotechnical analysis or calculations 
 CEQA clearance 

TASK AND FEE SUMMARY  

TASK DESCRIPTION FIXED FEE 
(see footnote) 

Task 1 Planning and Preliminary Project Assessment  

1.1 Schematic Design $ 60,760 
Task 1 Subtotal $ 60,760 

Task 2 Design Development and Construction Documents 

2.1 Design Development $ 107,265 
2.2 Construction Documents $ 167,435 
2.3 Permitting $ 17,200 

Task 2 Subtotal $ 291,900 

Task 3 Bidding Phase  

3.1 Bidding $ 20,265 
Task 3 Subtotal $ 20,265 

Task 4 Construction and Project Completion   
4.1 Construction Administration $ 105,180 
4.2 Record Drawings and Project Closeout $ 10,910 

Task 4 Subtotal $ 116,090 

SUMMARY OF FEES: $489,015 
Estimated Reimbursable Expenses: $6,000 

ESTIMATED PROJECT TOTAL: $495,015 

Optional Tasks  

O.1 Cost Estimate $ 19,843 

O.2 Commissioning  for Cal Green Code  $ 11,970 

O.3 Geotechnical Report $ 14,750 
 



Mendota City Hall and Police Station Construction Documents 
Proposed Scope of Services 

June 25, 2021 
Page 10 of 11 

 

 

 

Fee Footnote 
Fixed fee tasks will be billed as the work progresses until the task is completed and the total 
amount stated in the contract for the task is invoiced. 
 
Reimbursable Expenses   
All expenses will be reimbursed pursuant to the rates, terms, and conditions in the attached 
Exhibit A-1. 

EXHIBIT A-1: GENERAL PROVISIONS AND CONDITIONS 
RRM Design Group and Client agree that Exhibit A-1 is hereby made part of this proposal.  
 
If you have any questions or require clarification of the scope of services, Exhibit A-1, or fees 
outlined above, please do not hesitate to call us. If this scope of services is acceptable, please 
sign below indicating mutual agreement of the terms of this proposal; return one set to RRM 
and retain one set for your records. Thank you again for this opportunity. 
 
Sincerely,  

RRM DESIGN GROUP 
 
 

 
Charles Dellinger, AIA, PMP, LEED AP   Mike Scott, LEED AP 
Senior Project Manager     Principal 
CA License No. C31916    CA License No. C31544 
 
Attachment: Exhibit A-1 
  



Mendota City Hall and Police Station Construction Documents 
Proposed Scope of Services 

June 25, 2021 
Page 11 of 11 

 

 

 

 
The person signing and executing this contract for the Client represents and warrants that he or she is duly 
authorized and has the legal capacity and actual authority to bind the Client to each and every term, condition, and 
obligation of this contract and that all requirements of the Client have been fulfilled to provide such authority. 

AUTHORIZATION TO PROCEED BY CLIENT REPRESENTATIVE: 
 
            
Sign        Date 
 
            
Print Name, Title    
 
            
Billing E-mail (Please identify person’s name and e-mail address to receive electronic invoices.) 
 
            
Billing Address (if different from mailing address) 
 
            
Tasks Authorized (All tasks authorized unless otherwise noted.) 
 
djpC:\Users\djpearson\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\INetCache\Content.Outlook\UU6PLRIG\Proposal-Mendota City Hall and Police Study.docx 



 1 

BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE 

CITY OF MENDOTA, COUNTY OF FRESNO 
 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL   RESOLUTION NO. 21-51 
OF THE CITY OF MENDOTA APPROVING 
ENTRANCE INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH  
RRM DESIGN GROUP FOR SERVICES NEEDED 
FOR THE MENDOTA CITY HALL AND 
POLICE DEPARTMENT PROJECT 
 
 WHEREAS, in 2015, the City of Mendota (“City”) purchased the real property 
located at the corner of Riofrio Street and 7th Street for the purpose of constructing a 
new City Hall and Police Department building (“the Project”); and  
 

WHEREAS, in 2020, the City contracted program management services to 
provide preliminary development and program management services, conduct a needs 
assessment, and calculate cost estimates for the Project; and  

 
WHEREAS, in April 2021, the City contracted a financial advising firm to perform 

general financial consulting services relating to the Project; and   
 
WHEREAS, in June 2021, the City approved contracting with various firms to 

prepare necessary documentation and provide necessary services for the issuance of 
bonds to refund and prepay certain outstanding obligations and to finance the Project; 
and  

 
WHEREAS, the City also seeks to contract with RRM Design Group to provide 

design and construction services for the Project. 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of 
Mendota hereby approves entrance into an agreement with RRM Design Group for 
services needed for the Project and authorizes the City Manager to sign all necessary 
documents. 
          
       ______________________________ 
       Rolando Castro, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 2 

ATTEST: 
 
 I, Celeste Cabrera-Garcia, City Clerk of the City of Mendota, do hereby certify 
that the foregoing resolution was duly adopted and passed by the City Council at a 
regular meeting of said Council, held at the Mendota City Hall on the 13th day of July, 
2021, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN:           

____________________________ 
Celeste Cabrera-Garcia, City Clerk 



1 

 

AGENDA ITEM – STAFF REPORT 

TO: HONORABLE MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS 

FROM: CELESTE CABRERA-GARCIA, CITY CLERK 

VIA: CRISTIAN GONZALEZ, CITY MANAGER 

SUBJECT: APPROVING THE PROPOSAL SUBMITTED BY HAAKER EQUIPMENT COMPANY FOR A 
SEWER COMBINATION UNIT TRUCK AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
EXECUTE ALL NECESSARY DOCUMENTS 

DATE: JULY 13, 2021 
  

ISSUE 
Should the City Council adopt Resolution No. 21-52, approving the proposal submitted by 
Haaker Equipment Company for a sewer combination unit truck and authorizing the City 
Manager to execute all necessary documents? 
 
BACKGROUND 
On June 17, 2021, staff issued a Request for Proposals (“RFP”) for the purchase of a sewer unit 
combination truck. The RFP was advertised on the City’s website and a public notice was 
published in the Firebaugh-Mendota Journal inviting interested parties to submit a proposal.  
 
On Monday, July 6th at 2:00 p.m., the public bid opening was held in the City Council Chambers. 
A total of four (4) proposals were received by the deadline and they are as follows: 
 

CONTRACTOR TRUCK PRICE  TOTAL (with 
taxes and fees) 

Haaker Equipment Company $419,922.00 $453,486.36 
Municipal Maintenance Equipment $430,151.17 $464,473.23 
Terry Equipment, Inc. $436,009.00 Not provided 
WECO Industries Not Provided $477,602.91 

 
 
ANALYSIS 
The lowest, responsible proposal was submitted by Haaker Equipment Company for a total of 
$453,486.36, and they are able to deliver the truck within 15-30 days from the execution of the 
necessary documents.  
 
Mendota Municipal Code Section 2.48.100(A) requires that the City Council award contract that 
exceed five thousand dollars ($5,000.00). As such, staff recommends that the City Council 
discuss and consider approving the proposal submitted by Haaker Equipment Company. 
 
 
 



2 

 

FISCAL IMPACT 
A total of $453,486.36 to be paid by the Sewer fund. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 21-52, approving the proposal 
submitted by Haaker Equipment Company for a sewer combination unit truck and authorizing 
the City Manager to execute all necessary documents. 
 
 
Attachment(s): 

1. Haaker Equipment Company Proposal 
2. Resolution No. 21-52 

 

































 1 

BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE 

CITY OF MENDOTA, COUNTY OF FRESNO 
 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL   RESOLUTION NO. 21-52 
OF THE CITY OF MENDOTA APPROVING 
THE PROPOSAL SUBMITTED BY HAAKER 
EQUIPMENT COMPANY FOR A SEWER  
COMBINATION UNIT TRUCK AND  
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
EXECUTE ALL NECESSARY DOCUMENTS 
 
 WHEREAS, on June 17, 2021, the City of Mendota (“City”) issued a Request for 
Proposals (“RFP”) for the purchase of a Sewer Unit Combination Truck (the “Truck”); 
and 
 

WHEREAS, on June 23, 2021, a public notice was published with the Firebaugh-
Mendota Journal notifying all interested parties to submit proposals for the Truck; and  
 
 WHEREAS, a bid opening was held promptly after the deadline published in the 
aforementioned notice on July 6, 2021 at 2:00 p.m. in the City Council Chambers of the 
City; and  
 
 WHEREAS, four (4) companies submitted bids before the deadline, with Haaker 
Equipment Company qualifying as the lowest responsible, responsive bidder with a total 
cost proposal of $453,486.36 (including all appropriate taxes and fees). 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of 
Mendota that the City Council approves the proposal submitted by Haaker Equipment 
Company for the Truck and authorize the City Manager or his designee to execute all 
documents necessary to effectuate the purchase of the Truck. 
    
       ______________________________ 
       Rolando Castro, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 2 

ATTEST: 
 
 I, Celeste Cabrera-Garcia, City Clerk of the City of Mendota, do hereby certify 
that the foregoing resolution was duly adopted and passed by the City Council at a 
regular meeting of said Council, held at the Mendota City Hall on the 13th day of July, 
2021, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN:  
  
       ______________________________ 

Celeste Cabrera-Garcia, City Clerk 



1 

 

AGENDA ITEM – STAFF REPORT 

TO: HONORABLE MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS 

FROM: CELESTE CABRERA-GARCIA, CITY CLERK 

VIA: CRISTIAN GONZALEZ, CITY MANAGER 

SUBJECT: DESIGNATION OF VOTING DELEGATES FOR LEAGUE OF CALIFORNIA CITIES ANNUAL 
CONFERENCE 

DATE: JULY 13, 2021 
  

ISSUE 
Should the City Council adopt Resolution No. 21-53, appointing voting delegates for the League 
of California Cities’ Annual Business Meeting? 
 
BACKGROUND 
The League of California Cities (“LOCC”) requests that each City designate a voting delegate 
and alternates for its Annual Business Meeting that is held concurrently with the Annual 
Conference. This year’s conference will be held from September 22-24, 2021, at the SAFE 
Credit Union Convention Center in Sacramento, CA. The Annual Business Meeting at which the 
City's representative is to vote will take place on Friday, September 24th. The League will be 
providing additional information regarding the conference at a later date. 
 
ANALYSIS 
In the past, the City Council has designated the Council Members who will be attending the 
event as the voting delegates. The Council Members that have been registered to attend the 
conference are Mayor Rolando Castro, Mayor Pro Tem Jesus Mendoza, and Councilor Jose 
Alonso. As such, staff recommends that the Council discuss and appoint the City’s voting 
delegate and alternates from the Council Members who will be attending the conference. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
None. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 21-53, appointing voting delegates 
for the League of California Cities’ Annual Business Meeting. 
 
Attachment(s): 

1. LOCC Voting Delegate Information 
2. Resolution No. 21-53 

 
 











 1 

BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE 

CITY OF MENDOTA, COUNTY OF FRESNO 
 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL   RESOLUTION NO. 21-53 
OF THE CITY OF MENDOTA APPOINTING 
VOTING DELEGATES FOR THE LEAGUE 
OF CALIFORNIA CITIES’ ANNUAL  
BUSINESS MEETING 
 
 WHEREAS, the League of California Cities (“League”) will hold its Annual 
Conference from September 22-24, 2021; and 
 
 WHEREAS, during the Annual Conference, the League will hold its Annual 
Business Meeting wherein the League will take action on resolutions that establish its 
policy; and 
 
 WHEREAS, this year’s Annual Business Meeting will be held in Sacramento, Ca 
on Friday, September 24, 2021 at 12:30 p.m.; and  
 
 WHEREAS, any official casting a vote for a member city must be specifically 
authorized by the legislative body of that City, in advance of the vote being cast, in order 
to do so. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of 
Mendota hereby designates _________________ as the Voting Delegate, and 
__________________ as an Alternate Voting Delegate, for representation of the City of 
Mendota in League matters at the 2021 Annual Business Meeting. 
 
       ______________________________ 
       Rolando Castro, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 I, Celeste Cabrera-Garcia, City Clerk of the City of Mendota, do hereby certify 
that the foregoing resolution was duly adopted and passed by the City Council at a 
regular meeting of said Council, held at the Mendota City Hall on the 13th day of July, 
2021, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN:  
       ______________________________ 

Celeste Cabrera-Garcia, City Clerk 



1 

 

AGENDA ITEM – STAFF REPORT 

TO: HONORABLE MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS 

FROM: NANCY DIAZ, FINANCE OFFICER 

VIA: CRISTIAN GONZALEZ, CITY MANAGER 

SUBJECT: APPROVING COMMITMENT OF CURRENT PROGRAM INCOME (PI) FUNDS FOR THE 
ROJAS-PIERCE PARK EXPANSION PROJECT AND AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF 
CONTRACTS 

DATE: JULY 13, 2021 
  

ISSUE 
Shall the City Council adopt Resolution No. 21-54, approving commitment of current Program 
Income (PI) Funds for the Rojas-Pierce Park Expansion Project and authorizing the execution of 
contracts? 
 
BACKGROUND 
The Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program established through the Housing 
and Community Development Act of 1974, to streamline federal community development 
programs. This program was to provide decent housing, expand economic opportunities and 
benefit principally for low-and moderate-income individuals and families.  
 
The City of Mendota (City) has Program Income (PI) funding available that is eligible for a wide 
range of activities, including housing, public services, economic development, infrastructure and 
more. The City has assisted with Homebuyer Assistance Program and Housing Rehabilitation 
Program which a portfolio managed annually. 
 
ANALYSIS 
The City currently has the $326,120.00 of PI funds in its coffers. There is process that the City 
must complete in order to expend the PI funds, having a public hearing is one of them. On June 
15, the City held a public hearing to discuss the CDBG Program, the funding available and the 
intention of funding for a proposed project, the Rojas-Pierce Park Expansion Project. During the 
public hearing, Westside Youth expressed their interest in a program their non-profit 
organization would like to implement, a program to assist the public with a computer learning 
course since daily activity is moving towards electronic communication. The public comment 
has been accepted. The resolution presented today will fulfill the process in expending the PI 
funds. Staff will be able to submit reimbursements through the web portal after the execution of 
the resolution.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
$326,120.00. Fund 09. 
 
 



2 

 

RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends that the City Council adopt Resolution No. 21-54, approving commitment of 
current Program Income (PI) Funds for the Rojas-Pierce Park Expansion Project and authorizing 
the execution of contracts. 
 
Attachment(s): 

1. Resolution No. 21-54 



1 
 

BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE 

CITY OF MENDOTA, COUNTY OF FRESNO 
 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL   RESOLUTION NO. 21-54 
OF THE CITY OF MENDOTA APPROVING 
THE COMMITMENT OF CURRENT PROGRAM 
INCOME (PI) FUNDS FOR THE  
DEVELOPMENT OF ROJAS-PIERCE PARK 
EXPANSION PROJECT AND AUTHORIZING  
THE EXECUTION OF CONTRACTS 
 
 WHEREAS, a public hearing to solicit and accept public comment on the use of 
Community Development Block Grant (“CDBG”) Program Income (“PI”) Funds was 
completed on June 15, 2021; and 
 
 WHEREAS, CDBG funds from prior grant awards were used to provide low to 
moderate income households loans for the purchase and/or repairs of homes and as 
loans are repaid the funds are held in a special CDBG PI revenue fund; and 
 
 WHEREAS, under the current guidelines PI funds must be expended on 
qualifying projects; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Mendota, as of May 31, 2021, maintains a CDBG PI 
balance of $326,120 and expects receiving additional $75,000 in PI prior to the 
completion of the Project; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in order to successfully complete the project, it is recommended the 
City Council commit the current PI funds and all future PI funds received to the Rojas-
Pierce Park Expansion Project, through project completion. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of 
Mendota, as follows: 
 
 Section 1: 

The City Council has reviewed and hereby approves and not to exceed, of 
$401,120 for the following CDBG PI funds for the following activities:  
 
Rojas-Pierce Park Expansion Project    $401,120 
 
Section 2: 
The City of Mendota acknowledges compliance with all state and federal public 
participation requirements in the development of its application(s). 
 
 
 



2 
 

Section 3: 
The City of Mendota hereby authorizes and directs the City Manager to execute 
and act on the City’s behalf in all matters pertaining to all such contracts related 
to the project. 
 
Section 4: 
The City of Mendota is authorized to enter into, execute and deliver the 
agreements and any all subsequent amendments thereto with the agents to 
support the purposes of the grant. 
 
Section 5: 
The City Manager, Finance Officer, or Finance Director, is authorized to sign and 
submit Funds Requests, if required, and all required reporting forms and other 
documentation as may be required by the State of California or HUD from time to 
time in connection with the PI expenditures. 
 

 
       ______________________________ 
       Rolando Castro, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 I, Celeste Cabrera-Garcia, City Clerk of the City of Mendota, do hereby certify 
that the foregoing resolution was duly adopted and passed by the City Council at a 
regular meeting of said Council, held at the Mendota City Hall on the 13th day of July, 
2021, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  
NOES:  
ABSENT:  
ABSTAIN:  
       ______________________________ 

Celeste Cabrera-Garcia, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



1 

 

AGENDA ITEM – STAFF REPORT 

TO: HONORABLE MAYOR AND COUNCILMEMBERS 

FROM: NANCY M. DIAZ, FINANCE OFFICER 

VIA: CRISTIAN GONZALEZ, CITY MANAGER 

SUBJECT: GRANTS UPDATE 

DATE: JULY 13, 2021 
  

GRANTS UPDATE 
 
 County of Fresno, Urban Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program 

– Staff contacted the County of Fresno (County) to get an update on our requested budget 
to include funding from 2019-2020, 2020-2021 and 2021-2022. Our allocation is 
$575,222.00 for all three fiscal years. Since we are advancing our allocation for 2021-
2022, we will forfeit funding for 2022-2023. The City will be able to submit an 
application for funding in 2023-2024. All funding will be used for the Rojas-Pierce Park 
Expansion Project. Staff is waiting for documents from the County to finalize agreement 
and for the reimbursement process.    

 County of Fresno, Urban Community Development Block Grant Program for 
Eligible Activities to Support Coronavirus and Other Infectious Disease Response – 
The “Mendota Internet Connectivity, Project No. 19741-CV (MIC) is open. Staff is 
working with California State University, Fresno’s Office of Community and Economic 
Development who are assisting with intake of applications. Funds need to be disbursed 
by November 2021. Challenges we are facing is applicant need to be a U.S. citizen or 
have legal immigration status. This is a funding requirement enforced by the U.S. 
Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). We have paid (4)  

 FEMA-4482-DR-CA California Covid-19 Pandemic – Staff is in the process of 
submitting for reimbursement. 

 Statewide Park Development and Community Revitalization Program (SPP) – Staff 
submitted an application for a new community center, outdoor fitness court and inclusive 
playground to be located at the Rojas-Pierce Park on Friday, March 12, 2021. The 
selection process should be late Summer 2021. 

 Wonderful Community Grants – The 2021-2022 grant cycle will be opening on August 
1st and closing on August 31st. The Mendota Community Corporation applied for a $50K 
rental relief program for last year’s grant cycle. The grant criteria encouraged are 
applications that support health and wellness, community beautification, supporting 
families and COVID-19 recovery. Successful applicants will demonstrate community 
need and yield tangible and visible results. Funds are available for program 
development/expansion, innovation, technology and equipment. Grants will be awarded 
from $1K-$50K and up to four $100K grants to be used over a two-year period.    

 Floodplain Management Services (FPMS) – A letter of intent was sent to the Planning 
Division of the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers requesting assistance through the 



2 

 

Floodplain Management Service Program. Under this program, we would be able to have 
floodplain maps and recommendations on how to reduce the flood risk in Mendota.  

 Public Benefit Grant Program: Staff submitted reimbursements for the (3) Ford 
Explorers.   

 Office of Traffic Safety: The emergency extrication equipment was displayed at the 
2021 Fireworks Show on Saturday, June 26th. Firefighters from the Mendota Station and 
the Tranquility Station were on site. Displaying equipment is part of the grant 
requirements. Staff is working on scheduling a presentation from the fire department 
regarding this equipment for City Council. 

 
Attachment(s): 

1. Grants Spreadsheet 



MENDOTA, CITY OF

Grant Report

Jul-21

Grant Name Application Due Date Award Date

Agency: 
Federal/State/County/

Private Pass-thru Matching Award Amount Purpose of Grant  Notes 
 Comments by 
Council or Staff 

Tire-Derived Product Grant 6/1/2021 8/31/2021 State N N 149,995.02$                Install rubber mulch at (7) project sites citywide for landscape purposes.

New Alternative Fuel Vehicle Purchase TBD TBD Local N N

 Up to $20,000 per 

vehicle 

 Purchase (2) electric "Zero" motorcylces for the Police Department and (3) vehicles 

for Public Works & Public Utiliities  

Statewide Park Development and 

Community Revitalization Program (SPP) 3/12/2021 August/September State N N Maximum $8,500,000

 1) Community Center - Rojas-Pierce Park; 2) Fitness Court - Veterans Park; 3) 

Renovation - Pool Park 

Proposition 64 Public Health and Safety 

Grant Program 1/29/2021 5/1/2021 State N N $452,509.75

 (2) Community Resource Officers, (2) Administrative Assistants, (1) K-9, (1) vehicle  Partnership with City of Fresno (Lead Applicant), 

Fresno EOC, The Boys & Girls Clubs of Fresno 

County 

Good Neighbor Citizenship Company 

Grants 10/31/2020 4/30/2021 Private N N 198,825.00$                

Pocket Park at Bass Avenue and I Street

CARES County of Fresno 10/1/2020 12/31/2020 County N N 229,732.87$                COVID-19 relief funds; Non-profit organizations; Message Trailers; Overtime

Coronavirus Relief Funds (CRF) 10/1/2020 7/1/2020 State N N 154,512.00$                Expenditures incurred for COVID-19 - Use funds for Police Department MDT's

FEMA-4482-DR-CA TBD TBD State N Y  TBD  Expenditures incurred for COVID-19  25% match 

CDGB -Coronavirus and Other TBD 7/1/2020 County N N  $                104,796.00  Fire Department Equipment & Broadband Assistance for Mendota Residents 

Wonderful Community Grants 8/31/2020 9/15/2020 Private N N 50,000.00$                  COVID-19 relief funds Mendota Community Corporation Administering

Tobacco Grant Program 8/7/2020 TBD State N N TBD

 Add new tobacco language to our municipal code for enforcement; overtime for 

educational awareness to local vendors. 

Urban Community Development Block 7/31/2020 7/1/2021 County N N  $                150,000.00  Phase III Rojas-Pierce Park Expansion Project 

California Aid to Airports Program 7/9/2020 3/31/2021 State N N 10,000.00$                   Annual credit grant to fund operational costs at the airport 

Community Facilities Grant 7/1/2020 8/1/2020 Federal N Y  $                  50,000.00 

 Purchase (2) Police Ford Explorers, upfit and equipment. This grant is in conjunction 

with the New Alternative Fuel Vehicle Purchase Grant.  USDA 

New Alternative Fuel Vehicle Purchase 6/22/2020 10/31/2020 Local N N

 Up to $20,000 per 

vehicle 

 Purchase (1) Police Ford Explorer and (1) Ford F-250 Truck 

CARES Act Airport Grant 6/18/2020 TBD Federal N N  $                    1,000.00 

 Reimburse operational and maintenance expenses or debt service payments for the  

William Robert Johnston Municipal Airport 

Urban Flood Protection Grant Program 6/15/2020 TBD State N N  $             4,500,000.00 

 Removal and replacement of undersized and critically damaged storm drain from 8th 

Street southeasterly past 10th Street to an existing ditch. 

COPS Hiring Program 3/11/2020 10/1/2020 Federal N Y  $                125,000.00  Hire (1) Full-time Police Officer for 3 years.  25% match 

Office of Traffic Safety Grants 1/30/2020 10/1/2020 State N N  $                  81,527.00 

 DUI Saturations, Traffic Enforcements, Car Seat Installation/Giveaway Event, 

Emergency Medical Services for the Fire Department 

 We received 2/3 grants applied. Car Seat 

Installation was not approved. 

Fresno COG 2019-2020 CMAQ 1/1/2020 5/1/2020 Federal Y Y  $                458,304.00 

 Alley Paving Project for 7U & 7U1 (near Unida/Belmont/Derrick) and about 1/3 of the 

alleys on the eastside.  11.47% match 

SB 2 Planning Grant Program 12/20/2019 6/1/2020 State N N up to $160,000 Update planning documents and processes of housing approvals/production

New Alternative Fuel Vehicle Purchase 12/20/2019 6/1/2020 Local N N

 Up to $20,000 per 

vehicle 

 Purchase (1) Public Works/Utilities Trades Vehicle & (2) Police Explorers Interceptors 

Vehicles 

 (2) Police Explorers Vehicles to be paid with funding 

from USDA 

Beverage Container Recycling City/County 

Payment Program 12/17/2019 2/28/2020 State N N 5,000.00$                     

 Billboard Advertisement and Radio Advertisement to promote beverage container 

recycling. 

 If you don’t expend the full $5,000.00, you must 

repay CalRecycle. 

Automatic Meter Read Construction 10/21/2019 State N Y 3,074,561.00$              Install City-wide Automatic Meter Reading Meters  Grant Component $2,724,912.00 

Access to Historical Records: Archival 

Projects 10/3/2019 7/1/2020 Federal N Y 95,907.00$                  Digitize public records and make freely available online

National Fitness Campaign 2020 8/1/2019 10/1/2020 Private N Y 30,000.00$                   Outdoor Fitness Court 

 If the City wishes to pursue this grant, we would 

need to match $100,000.00. 

Urban Community Development Block 7/31/2019 7/1/2020 County N N 575,222.00$                 Phase II Rojas-Pierce Park Expansion Project 

 For Fiscal Years 2019/2020; 2020/2021 & 

2021/2022 

California Aid to Airports Program 7/31/2019 10/31/2019 State N N 10,000.00$                   Annual credit grant to fund operational costs at the airport 

Urban County Per Capita Grant Program 6/3/2019 2020 State N N 6,969.92$                      Rojas-Pierce Park Expansion One-time basis

Per Capita Grant Program 6/3/2019 2020 State N N 177,952.00$                Rojas-Pierce Park Expansion  One-time basis 

Key: Applied for Grants
        In process
       Approved
       Denied
       Closed

Grant Information



286 W. Cromwell Avenue 
Fresno, CA 93711-6162 

Tel:  (559) 449-2700 
Fax:  (559) 449-2715 

www.provostandpritchard.com  

\\ppeng.com\pzdata\clients\Mendota_City of-3336\3336OG01_On-Going\100\110 Status Reports\City Eng Council Report.docx 
 

Engineering  Surveying  Planning  Environmental  GIS  Construction Services  Hydrogeology  Consulting 
Fresno    Bakersfield    Visalia    Clovis    Modesto    Los Banos    Chico    Merced    Sacramento 

Memorandum 
To:   City Council via Cristian Gonzalez, City Manager 

From:   Michael Osborn, City Engineer 

Subject:  City Engineer’s Report to City Council 

Date:   July 7, 2021 

Engineering Projects: 
1. Rojas Pierce Park: 

• Working with staff for funding for next Phase & sponsorship opportunities 

• Working with contractor to address concrete issues 
2. Mowry Bridge Replacement Project (MBRP): 

• Water line relocation set to occur on 7/12 

• Completion in July/August 2021 
3. Well 10 and Water Main Relocation 

• On hold; working with USBR and BB Limited to reduce costs 
4. Mendota Meter Reading Project 

• Bids open on Friday, 7/9 

• Construction to start in summer 2021 with Waterboard funding 
5. Citywide RRXG Improvements: 

• Began coordination with Railroad and Caltrans 
6. MJHS Safe Routes to School Project: 

• ATP funds authorized; RFP for design services to be issued this month 
7. Safe Routes to School Master Plan 

• ATP funds authorized; RFP for report preparation this month 
8. 2021 Alley Paving Project 

• Request for Authorization for Construction funds to Caltrans this month 

• Construction to start in Summer 2021 with $483,000 of CMAQ funding 

Planning/Development Projects 
1. Salomon Multifamily Project at 755 Marie Street 

• Provided site plan comments to architect on June 15 
2. Rojas Pierce Park Annexation 

• Working with LAFCo and WWD to complete process 

• Staff is reviewing GSPs to ensure that the City can comply with WWD requests 
3. CES Mendota 

• Reviewing applicant request to modify noise ordinance 
4. Left Mendota II 

• Revising conditional use permit and development agreement to add 13 acres of 
outdoor cultivation to existing Left Mendota I project (former Cannahub) 

• Circulated CEQA document on July 7  

• Preparing for Planning Commission special meeting on August 9 



To: City Council via City Manager  July 7, 2021 
City Engineer’s Report to City Council  Page 2 of 2 

\\ppeng.com\pzdata\clients\Mendota_City of-3336\3336OG01_On-Going\100\110 Status Reports\City Eng Council Report.docx 

 

5. Regional Housing Needs Allocation 
• Participating in Fresno COG meetings regarding the initial steps of the 6 th Cycle 

Housing Element preparation 

Grant Applications: 
1. Mendota Stormwater Improvement Project 

• EOPCC $4.2 million 

• Prop 68 Urban Flood Protection Grant Program 

• Submitted Step 3 supplemental information 

• Award announcement in August 2021 

• Prop 1 Storm Water Grant Program, Round 2 

• $3,822,800 awarded for this project; pending results of Prop 68 
2. Caltrans Sustainable Transportation Planning Grant 

• Submitted application for funds to prepare Derrick & Oller Corridor Enhancement 
Plan to improve safety and circulation in these two major corridors 

• Was not successful; debrief with Caltrans on Friday, 7/9 
3. Application for $10,000 in REAP funding was awarded to develop GIS mapping for City 

On-going (this month): 
1. Representation of the City at FCOG TTC meetings 
2. Representation of the City and westside cities at FCOG RTP/SCS roundtable 
3. Discussion of road safety issues with Caltrans 

Overall P&P Staff engaged (month of May): 
• Engineers: 3 
• Planners: 4 
• Surveyors: 1 
• Environmental Specialist: 0 
• GIS/CAD Specialists: 2 
• Construction Manager: 0 
• Project Administrator: 2 

Abbreviations: 
EOPCC – Engineer’s Opinion of Probable Construction Cost 
NTP – Notice to Proceed 
CUCCAC – California Uniform Construction Cost Accounting 
Commission 
STBG – Surface Transportation Block Grant 
CMAQ – Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality (grant) 
ATP – Active Transportation Plan (grant) 
RFP – Request for Proposal 

RFA- Request for Authorization (for grant funding) 
FCOG – Fresno Council of Governments 
ADA – Americans with Disabilities Act 
DBE – Disadvantaged Business Enterprise 
TTC – Technical Transportation Committee (through FCOG) 
RTP/SCS – Regional Transportation Plan, Sustainable 
Communities Strategies 

 


	7-13-21 City Council Meeting Agenda
	6-22-21 City Council Meeting Minutes
	MINUTES OF MENDOTA
	REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING
	Meeting called to order by Mayor Castro at 6:14 p.m.

	Roll Call

	Warrant List
	21-43 Staff Report
	21-43 Attach - 1
	21-43 State Surplus Property
	21-44 Staff Report
	21-44 OPP12
	ABSTAIN:
	______________________________

	Exhibit A Sheet
	21-44 Exhibit A
	21-45 Staff Report
	21-45 Attach - 1
	Cover Page
	Claim Detail
	Art 3 & 8 Project Descr
	Contingency&Strd Assur

	21-45 Claiming LTF Funds
	AYES:
	NOES:
	ABSENT:
	ABSTAIN:

	21-46 Staff Report
	21-46 Attach - 1
	21-46 Attach - 2
	21-46 Attach - 3
	21-46 Attach - 4
	21-46 Measure C
	AYES:
	NOES:
	ABSENT:
	ABSTAIN:

	21-47 Staff Report
	21-47 Adopting Debt Management Policy
	AYES:
	NOES:
	ABSENT:
	ABSTAIN:

	Exhibit A Sheet
	21-47 Exhibit A
	21-48 Staff Report
	21-48 Attach - 1
	21-48 AFSCME MOU extension to 2024
	AYES:
	NOES:
	ABSENT:
	ABSTAIN:

	Exhibit A Sheet
	21-48 Exhibit A
	21-49 Staff Report
	21-49 MPOA MOU
	AYES:
	NOES:
	ABSENT:
	ABSTAIN:

	Exhibit A Sheet
	21-49 Exhibit A
	21-50 Staff Report
	21-50 2021 Management Benefit Resolution Draft
	BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL

	21-51 Staff Report
	21-51 Attachment
	21-51 RRM Design Services
	AYES:
	NOES:
	ABSENT:

	21-52 Staff Report
	21-52 Attach - 1
	21-52 Sewer Vehicle
	AYES:
	NOES:
	ABSENT:
	ABSTAIN:

	21-53 Staff Report
	21-53 Attach - 1
	21-53 LOCC Voting Delegate
	AYES:
	NOES:
	ABSENT:
	ABSTAIN:

	21-54 Staff Report
	21-54 CDBG Program Income
	AYES:
	NOES:
	ABSENT:
	ABSTAIN:

	July 2021
	Grants Spreadsheet
	Grant Report July 2021

	City Engineer Report

	AGENDA: 


